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ITEM 1.    FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- -------    --------------------

                   CONSTELLATION BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
                           CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
                        (in thousands, except share data)

                                                     May 31,       February 28,
                                                      2001             2001
                                                  ------------     ------------
                                                   (unaudited)
                       ASSETS
                       ------
CURRENT ASSETS:
  Cash and cash investments                       $      3,739     $    145,672
  Accounts receivable, net                             374,398          314,262
  Inventories, net                                     756,611          670,018
  Prepaid expenses and other current assets             64,584           61,037
                                                  ------------     ------------
    Total current assets                             1,199,332        1,190,989
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net                     583,070          548,614
OTHER ASSETS                                           957,291          772,566
                                                  ------------     ------------
  Total assets                                    $  2,739,693     $  2,512,169
                                                  ============     ============

        LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
        ------------------------------------
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
  Notes payable                                   $     24,903     $      4,184
  Current maturities of long-term debt                  72,996           54,176
  Accounts payable                                     154,394          114,793
  Accrued excise taxes                                  43,979           55,954
  Other accrued expenses and liabilities               208,351          198,053
                                                  ------------     ------------
    Total current liabilities                          504,623          427,160
                                                  ------------     ------------
LONG-TERM DEBT, less current maturities              1,294,116        1,307,437
                                                  ------------     ------------
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES                                  131,317          131,974
                                                  ------------     ------------
OTHER LIABILITIES                                       28,690           29,330
                                                  ------------     ------------
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
  Preferred Stock, $.01 par value-
    Authorized, 1,000,000 shares;
    Issued, none at May 31, 2001,
    and February 28, 2001                                 -                -
  Class A Common Stock, $.01 par value-
    Authorized, 120,000,000 shares;
    Issued, 37,723,329 shares at
    May 31, 2001, and 37,438,968 shares
    at February 28, 2001                                   377              374
  Class B Convertible Common Stock,
    $.01 par value-
    Authorized, 20,000,000 shares;
    Issued, 7,384,445 shares at
    May 31, 2001, and 7,402,594 shares
    at February 28, 2001                                    74               74
  Additional paid-in capital                           373,530          267,655
  Retained earnings                                    479,641          455,798
  Accumulated other comprehensive loss                 (30,375)         (26,004)
                                                  ------------     ------------
                                                       823,247          697,897
                                                  ------------     ------------
  Less-Treasury stock-
  Class A Common Stock, 1,830,600 shares at
    May 31, 2001, and 6,200,600 shares at
    February 28, 2001, at cost                         (39,967)         (79,271)
  Class B Convertible Common Stock, 1,251,450
    shares at May 31, 2001, and
    February 28, 2001, at cost                          (2,207)          (2,207)
                                                  ------------     ------------
                                                       (42,174)         (81,478)
                                                  ------------     ------------
  Less-Unearned compensation-restricted
    stock awards                                          (126)            (151)
                                                  ------------     ------------
    Total stockholders' equity                         780,947          616,268
                                                  ------------     ------------
  Total liabilities and stockholders' equity      $  2,739,693     $  2,512,169
                                                  ============     ============



          The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
                 are an integral part of these balance sheets.
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                   CONSTELLATION BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
                        CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
                      (in thousands, except per share data)

                                             For the Three Months Ended May 31,
                                             ----------------------------------
                                                  2001                 2000
                                             -------------        -------------
                                              (unaudited)          (unaudited)

GROSS SALES                                  $     835,774        $     774,522
  Less - Excise taxes                             (193,664)            (188,942)
                                             -------------        -------------
    Net sales                                      642,110              585,580
COST OF PRODUCT SOLD                              (440,160)            (401,707)
                                             -------------        -------------
    Gross profit                                   201,950              183,873
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
  EXPENSES                                        (132,027)            (126,409)
                                             -------------        -------------
    Operating income                                69,923               57,464
INTEREST EXPENSE, net                              (30,185)             (27,627)
                                             -------------        -------------
    Income before income taxes                      39,738               29,837
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES                         (15,895)             (11,935)
                                             -------------        -------------
NET INCOME                                   $      23,843        $      17,902
                                             =============        =============

SHARE DATA:
Earnings per common share:
    Basic                                    $        0.58        $        0.49
                                             =============        =============
    Diluted                                  $        0.56        $        0.48
                                             =============        =============
Weighted average common shares
  outstanding:
    Basic                                           41,254               36,460
    Diluted                                         42,526               37,196

          The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
                   are an integral part of these statements.

                                     - 2 -
<TABLE>
                             CONSTELLATION BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
                                CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
                                           (in thousands)
<CAPTION>
                                                                    For the Three Months Ended May 31,
                                                                    ----------------------------------
                                                                        2001                  2000
                                                                    ------------          ------------
                                                                     (unaudited)           (unaudited)
<S>                                                                 <C>                   <C>
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  Net income                                                        $     23,843          $     17,902

  Adjustments   to  reconcile  net  income  to  net
    cash  provided  by  operating activities:
      Depreciation of property, plant and equipment                       14,005                11,797
      Amortization of intangible assets                                    7,920                 6,549
      Loss on sale of assets                                                 920                   767
      Amortization of discount on long-term debt                             135                   116
      Stock-based compensation expense                                        25                  -
      Deferred tax provision                                                -                    3,571
      Change in operating assets and liabilities,
        net of effects from purchases of businesses:
          Accounts receivable, net                                       (39,164)              (50,394)
          Inventories, net                                                18,800                 8,747
          Prepaid expenses and other current assets                       (3,387)                2,129
          Accounts payable                                                21,251                10,603
          Accrued excise taxes                                           (11,706)               11,462
          Other accrued expenses and liabilities                           4,919                 1,200
          Other assets and liabilities, net                               (2,964)               (4,478)



                                                                    ------------          ------------
            Total adjustments                                             10,754                 2,069
                                                                    ------------          ------------
            Net cash provided by operating activities                     34,597                19,971
                                                                    ------------          ------------

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
  Purchases of businesses, net of cash acquired                         (328,783)                 -
  Purchases of property, plant and equipment                             (10,838)              (10,265)
  Proceeds from sale of assets                                               368                   317
                                                                    ------------          ------------
            Net cash used in investing activities                       (339,253)               (9,948)
                                                                    ------------          ------------

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
  Proceeds from equity offering, net of fees                             139,878                  -
  Net proceeds from (repayments of) notes payable                         21,162               (16,800)
  Exercise of employee stock options                                       4,797                 1,973
  Principal payments of long-term debt                                    (1,974)             (133,329)
  Payment of issuance costs of long-term debt                             (1,014)               (1,301)
  Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net of discount                 -                  119,400
                                                                    ------------          ------------
            Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities          162,849               (30,057)
                                                                    ------------          ------------

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
  cash investments                                                          (126)                 (250)
                                                                    ------------          ------------

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH INVESTMENTS                               (141,933)              (20,284)
CASH AND CASH INVESTMENTS, beginning of period                           145,672                34,308
                                                                    ------------          ------------
CASH AND CASH INVESTMENTS, end of period                            $      3,739          $     14,024
                                                                    ============          ============

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING
  AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
    Fair value of assets acquired, including cash acquired          $    368,632          $       -
    Liabilities assumed                                                  (39,347)                 -
                                                                    ------------          ------------
    Cash paid                                                            329,285                  -
    Less - cash acquired                                                    (502)                 -
                                                                    ------------          ------------
    Net cash paid for purchases of businesses                       $    328,783          $       -
                                                                    ============          ============
<FN>
                        The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
                                 are an integral part of these statements.
</FN>
</TABLE>
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                   CONSTELLATION BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
                                  MAY 31, 2001

1)   MANAGEMENT'S REPRESENTATIONS:

     The consolidated financial statements included herein have been prepared by
Constellation Brands, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the "Company"),  without audit,
pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange  Commission
applicable  to quarterly  reporting on Form 10-Q and reflect,  in the opinion of
the  Company,  all  adjustments   necessary  to  present  fairly  the  financial
information  for the Company.  All such  adjustments  are of a normal  recurring
nature.  Certain  information  and  footnote  disclosures  normally  included in
financial statements,  prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles,  have been  condensed  or  omitted  as  permitted  by such rules and
regulations. These consolidated financial statements and related notes should be
read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes
included in the  Company's  Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
February 28, 2001. Results of operations for interim periods are not necessarily
indicative of annual results.

     Certain May 31, 2000, balances have been reclassified to conform to current
year presentation.

2)   ACCOUNTING CHANGES:

     Effective  March 1,  2001,  the  Company  adopted  Statement  of  Financial
Accounting  Standards  No. 133  ("SFAS No.  133"),  "Accounting  for  Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities",  as amended,  which establishes  accounting
and reporting standards for derivative instruments and hedging activities.  SFAS



No. 133 requires that the Company  recognize all derivatives as either assets or
liabilities  on the balance sheet and measure those  instruments  at fair value.
The  adoption  of SFAS No. 133 did not have a material  impact on the  Company's
consolidated  financial  position,  results of  operations,  or cash flows.  The
Company is exposed to market risk  associated  with changes in foreign  currency
exchange rates. The Company has limited  involvement  with derivative  financial
instruments and does not use them for trading purposes. The Company periodically
enters  into  derivative  transactions  solely to manage the  volatility  and to
reduce the financial impact relating to this risk.

     The Company uses foreign currency exchange hedging agreements to reduce the
risk of foreign currency  exchange rate  fluctuations  resulting  primarily from
contracts to purchase  inventory  items that are  denominated in various foreign
currencies.  As these derivative  contracts are designated to hedge the exposure
to variable cash flows of a forecasted transaction, the contracts are classified
as cash flow hedges.  As such,  the effective  portion of the change in the fair
value of the  derivatives  is  recorded  each  period  in the  balance  sheet in
accumulated other comprehensive  income/loss ("AOCI"),  and is reclassified into
the statement of income,  primarily as a component of cost of goods sold, in the
same period during which the hedged transaction  affects earnings.  The currency
forward  exchange  contracts used generally have maturity terms of twelve months
or less.  The Company  expects the entire  balance in AOCI  related to cash flow
hedges to be  reclassified  to the statement of  income  within  the next twelve
months.  The  Company  formally  documents  all  relationships  between  hedging
instruments and hedged items in accordance with SFAS No. 133 requirements.

     The Company has exposure to foreign currency risk,  primarily in the United
Kingdom,  as a result of having  international  subsidiaries.  The Company  uses
local  currency  borrowings  to hedge its  earnings  and cash flow  exposure  to
adverse  changes  in  foreign  currency  exchange  rates.  Such  borrowings  are
designated as a hedge of the foreign currency  exposure of the net investment in
the  foreign  operation.  Accordingly,  the  effective  portion  of the  foreign
currency gain or loss on the hedging debt instrument is reported in AOCI as part
of the foreign currency translation adjustments.  For the three months ended
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May  31,  2001,  $5.3  million  of net  gain is  included  in  foreign  currency
translation adjustments within AOCI.

3)   ACQUISITIONS:

        On October 27, 2000,  the Company  purchased all of the issued  Ordinary
Shares  and  Preference  Shares of Forth  Wines  Limited  ("Forth  Wines").  The
purchase price was $4.5 million and was accounted for using the purchase method;
accordingly,  the acquired net assets were  recorded at fair market value at the
date of acquisition. The excess of the purchase price over the fair market value
of the net assets  acquired  (goodwill),  $2.2 million,  is being amortized on a
straight-line  basis over 40 years. The results of operations of Forth Wines are
reported in the Matthew Clark segment and have been included in the Consolidated
Statements of Income since the date of acquisition.

     On March 5, 2001, in an asset  acquisition,  the Company  acquired  several
well-known premium wine brands,  including Vendange,  Nathanson Creek, Heritage,
and Talus, working capital (primarily inventories),  two wineries in California,
and other related  assets from  Sebastiani  Vineyards,  Inc. and Tuolomne  River
Vintners Group (the "Turner Road Vintners  Assets").  The  preliminary  purchase
price of the Turner Road Vintners Assets,  including  assumption of indebtedness
of $9.4  million,  was $289.7  million.  The purchase  price is subject to final
closing  adjustments  which the  Company  does not  expect to be  material.  The
acquisition  was  financed by the proceeds  from the sale of the  February  2001
Senior Notes and revolving loan borrowings under the senior credit facility. The
Turner Road  Vintners  Assets  acquisition  was accounted for using the purchase
method; accordingly,  the acquired net assets were recorded at fair market value
at the date of  acquisition,  subject  to final  appraisal.  The  excess  of the
purchase price over the estimated  fair market value of the net assets  acquired
(goodwill),  $180.6 million, is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 40
years. The results of operations of the Turner Road Vintners Assets are reported
in the  Canandaigua  Wine  segment and have been  included  in the  Consolidated
Statements of Income since the date of acquisition.

     On March 26, 2001, in an asset  acquisition,  the Company  acquired certain
wine  brands,  wineries,  working  capital  (primarily  inventories),  and other
related  assets  from  Corus  Brands,   Inc.  (the  "Corus  Assets").   In  this
acquisition,  the  Company  acquired  several  well-known  premium  wine  brands
primarily sold in the northwestern United States, including Covey Run, Columbia,
Ste.  Chapelle  and Alice White.  The  preliminary  purchase  price of the Corus
Assets,  including  assumption  of  indebtedness  (net of cash acquired) of $3.1
million,  was  $52.0  million  plus an  earn-out  over  six  years  based on the
performance  of the  brands.  The  purchase  price is subject  to final  closing
adjustments which the Company does not expect to be material. In connection with
the transaction, the Company also entered into long-term grape supply agreements
with  affiliates  of Corus  Brands,  Inc.  covering  more  than  1,000  acres of
Washington and Idaho vineyards. The acquisition was financed with revolving loan
borrowings  under the senior credit facility.  The Corus Assets  acquisition was



accounted for using the purchase  method;  accordingly,  the acquired net assets
were recorded at fair market value at the date of acquisition,  subject to final
appraisal. The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair market value
of the net assets acquired  (goodwill),  $11.9 million,  is being amortized on a
straight-line basis over 40 years. The results of operations of the Corus Assets
are  reported in the  Canandaigua  Wine  segment  and have been  included in the
Consolidated Statements of Income since the date of acquisition.

     The  following  table  sets  forth  the  unaudited  pro  forma  results  of
operations of the Company for the three months ended May 31, 2001 and 2000.  The
unaudited  pro forma  results of  operations  for the three months ended May 31,
2001 and 2000,  gives  effect to the  acquisitions  of the Turner Road  Vintners
Assets and Corus Assets as if they occurred on March 1, 2000.  The unaudited pro
forma results of operations for the three months ended May 31, 2000, do not give
pro forma effect to the acquisition of Forth Wines as if it occurred on March 1,
2000,  as it is not  significant.  The unaudited pro forma results of operations
are  presented  after giving  effect to certain  adjustments  for  depreciation,
amortization  of goodwill,  interest  expense on the  acquisition  financing and
related  income tax effects.  The unaudited pro
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forma results of operations are based upon currently  available  information and
upon certain  assumptions  that the Company  believes are  reasonable  under the
circumstances.  The  unaudited pro forma results of operations do not purport to
present what the Company's results of operations would actually have been if the
aforementioned  transactions  had  in  fact  occurred  on  such  date  or at the
beginning of the period indicated,  nor do they project the Company's  financial
position or results of operations at any future date or for any future period.

                                                        For the Three Months
                                                            Ended May 31,
                                                     --------------------------
                                                        2001            2000
                                                     ----------      ----------
(in thousands, except per share data)
Net sales                                            $  644,074      $  644,505
Income before income taxes                           $   38,932      $   26,593
Net income                                           $   23,359      $   15,956

Earnings per common share:
  Basic                                              $     0.57      $     0.44
                                                     ==========      ==========
  Diluted                                            $     0.55      $     0.43
                                                     ==========      ==========

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
  Basic                                                  41,254          36,460
  Diluted                                                42,526          37,196

4)   INVENTORIES:

     Inventories  are stated at the lower of cost  (computed in accordance  with
the first-in,  first-out method) or market.  Elements of cost include materials,
labor and overhead and consist of the following:

                                            May 31,      February 28,
                                             2001            2001
                                         ------------    ------------
(in thousands)
Raw materials and supplies               $     32,260    $     28,007
In-process inventories                        465,848         450,650
Finished case goods                           258,503         191,361
                                         ------------    ------------
                                         $    756,611    $    670,018
                                         ============    ============

5)   OTHER ASSETS:

     The major components of other assets are as follows:

                                            May 31,      February 28,
                                             2001            2001
                                         ------------    ------------
(in thousands)
Goodwill                                 $    637,890    $    447,813
Trademarks                                    245,932         247,139
Distribution rights and agency
  license agreements                           87,052          87,052
Other                                          77,434          73,935
                                         ------------    ------------
                                            1,048,308         855,939
Less - Accumulated amortization               (91,017)        (83,373)
                                         ------------    ------------
                                         $    957,291    $    772,566



                                         ============    ============
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6)   STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

     During  March 2001,  the Company  completed a public  offering of 4,370,000
shares of its Class A Common  Stock  resulting  in net  proceeds to the Company,
after deducting  underwriting discounts and expenses, of $139.9 million. The net
proceeds were used to repay  revolving loan  borrowings  under the senior credit
facility of which a portion was incurred to partially finance the acquisition of
the Turner Road Vintners Assets.

7)   EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE:

     Basic  earnings  per  common  share  exclude  the  effect of  common  stock
equivalents and are computed by dividing income available to common stockholders
by the weighted  average number of common shares  outstanding  during the period
for Class A Common Stock and Class B Convertible Common Stock.  Diluted earnings
per common share reflect the potential  dilution that could result if securities
or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common
stock.  Diluted  earnings per common share assume the exercise of stock  options
using the  treasury  stock  method  and  assume the  conversion  of  convertible
securities, if any, using the "if converted" method.

     The  computation  of basic and  diluted  earnings  per  common  share is as
follows:

                                                      For the Three Months
                                                         Ended May 31,
                                                 ------------------------------
                                                     2001              2000
                                                 ------------      ------------
(in thousands, except per share data)
Income applicable to common shares               $     23,843      $     17,902
                                                 ============      ============

Weighted average common shares
  outstanding - basic                                  41,254            36,460
Stock options                                           1,272               736
                                                 ------------      ------------
Weighted average common shares
  outstanding - diluted                                42,526            37,196
                                                 ============      ============

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE - BASIC                $       0.58      $       0.49
                                                 ============      ============
EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE - DILUTED              $       0.56      $       0.48
                                                 ============      ============

     Stock  options to purchase  1.4  million and 3.2 million  shares of Class A
Common  Stock at a weighted  average  price per share of $35.49 and $26.03  were
outstanding  during the three months ended May 31, 2001 and 2000,  respectively,
but were not  included in the  computation  of the diluted  earnings  per common
share  because the stock  options'  exercise  price was greater than the average
market price of the Class A Common Stock for the respective periods.

8)   CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION:

     The following  information sets forth the condensed  consolidating  balance
sheets  of  the  Company  as of  May  31,  2001  and  2000,  and  the  condensed
consolidating statements of income and cash flows for the three months ended May
31,  2001  and  2000,  for  the  Company,   the  parent  company,  the  combined
subsidiaries  of the Company  which  guarantee  the  Company's  senior notes and
senior   subordinated   notes   ("Subsidiary   Guarantors")   and  the  combined
subsidiaries  of the  Company  which are not  Subsidiary  Guarantors,  primarily
Matthew Clark ("Subsidiary Nonguarantors"). The Subsidiary Guarantors are wholly
owned and the guarantees are full, unconditional,  joint and several obligations
of each of the  Subsidiary  Guarantors.  Separate  financial  statements for the
Subsidiary  Guarantors of the Company are not presented  because the Company has
determined  that such financial  statements  would not be material to investors.
The Subsidiary  Guarantors comprise all of the direct and indirect  subsidiaries
of the Company,  other than Matthew Clark, the Company's Canadian subsidiary and
certain  other  subsidiaries  which  individually,  and  in the  aggregate,  are
inconsequential.  The accounting policies of the parent company,  the Subsidiary
Guarantors and the Subsidiary  Nonguarantors are the same as those described
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for the Company in the Summary of Significant  Accounting  Policies in Note 1 to
the Company's consolidated financial statements included in the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended  February 28,  2001.  There are no
restrictions  on the ability of the  Subsidiary  Guarantors to transfer funds to
the Company in the form of cash dividends, loans or advances.



<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                   Parent        Subsidiary      Subsidiary
                                                   Company       Guarantors     Nonguarantors    Eliminations    
Consolidated
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
(in thousands)
<S>                                              <C>            <C>             <C>              <C>             
<C>
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
- -------------------------------------
at May 31, 2001
- ---------------
Current assets:
  Cash and cash investments                      $      -       $      3,569    $         170    $       -       $      
3,739
  Accounts receivable, net                            58,083          80,330          235,985            -            
374,398
  Inventories, net                                    31,983         598,781          125,905             (58)        
756,611
  Prepaid expenses and other
    current assets                                     5,615          37,107           21,862            -             
64,584
  Intercompany (payable) receivable                  (66,389)        124,835          (58,446)           -               
-
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
      Total current assets                            29,292         844,622          325,476             (58)      
1,199,332
Property, plant and equipment, net                    30,038         361,568          191,464            -            
583,070
Investments in subsidiaries                        2,182,342         531,771             -         (2,714,113)           
-
Other assets                                          88,868         624,356          244,067            -            
957,291
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
  Total assets                                   $ 2,330,540    $  2,362,317    $     761,007    $ (2,714,171)   $  
2,739,693
                                                 ===========    ============    =============    ============    
============

Current liabilities:
  Notes payable                                  $    20,000    $       -       $       4,903    $       -       $     
24,903
  Current maturities of long-term debt                67,044           1,379            4,573            -             
72,996
  Accounts payable and other liabilities             110,508          72,169          180,068            -            
362,745
  Accrued excise taxes                                 4,858          22,196           16,925            -             
43,979
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
      Total current liabilities                      202,410          95,744          206,469            -            
504,623
Long-term debt, less current maturities            1,281,793          11,855              468            -          
1,294,116
Deferred income taxes                                 33,232          69,330           28,755            -            
131,317
Other liabilities                                        467           4,111           24,112            -             
28,690
Stockholders' equity:
  Class A and class B common stock                       451           6,434           64,867         (71,301)            
451
  Additional paid-in capital                         373,530       1,071,627          436,466      (1,508,093)        
373,530
  Retained earnings                                  479,699       1,104,281           30,438      (1,134,777)        
479,641
  Accumulated other comprehensive
    income (loss)                                      1,258          (1,065)         (30,568)           -            
(30,375)
  Treasury stock and other                           (42,300)           -                -               -            
(42,300)
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
      Total stockholders' equity                     812,638       2,181,277          501,203      (2,714,171)        
780,947
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
  Total liabilities and
    stockholders' equity                         $ 2,330,540    $  2,362,317    $     761,007    $ (2,714,171)   $  
2,739,693
                                                 ===========    ============    =============    ============    
============



Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
- -------------------------------------
at February 28, 2001
- --------------------
Current assets:
  Cash and cash investments                      $   142,104    $      3,239    $         329    $       -       $    
145,672
  Accounts receivable, net                            80,299         116,784          117,179            -            
314,262
  Inventories, net                                    31,845         515,274          122,965             (66)        
670,018
  Prepaid expenses and other
    current assets                                     6,551          33,565           20,921            -             
61,037
  Intercompany (payable) receivable                  (61,783)         54,169            7,614            -               
-
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
      Total current assets                           199,016         723,031          269,008             (66)      
1,190,989
Property, plant and equipment, net                    30,554         320,143          197,917            -            
548,614
Investments in subsidiaries                        1,835,088         525,442             -         (2,360,530)           
-
Other assets                                          87,764         434,782          250,020            -            
772,566
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
  Total assets                                   $ 2,152,422    $  2,003,398    $     716,945    $ (2,360,596)   $  
2,512,169
                                                 ===========    ============    =============    ============    
============
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<CAPTION>
                                                   Parent        Subsidiary      Subsidiary
                                                   Company       Guarantors     Nonguarantors    Eliminations    
Consolidated
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
(in thousands)
<S>                                              <C>            <C>             <C>              <C>             
<C>
Current liabilities:
  Notes payable                                  $      -       $       -       $       4,184    $       -       $      
4,184
  Current maturities of long-term debt                49,218              70            4,888            -             
54,176
  Accounts payable and other liabilities             111,388          58,448          143,010            -            
312,846
  Accrued excise taxes                                 9,411          35,474           11,069            -             
55,954
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
      Total current liabilities                      170,017          93,992          163,151                         
427,160
Long-term debt, less current maturities            1,305,302             758            1,377            -          
1,307,437
Deferred income taxes                                 33,232          71,619           27,123            -            
131,974
Other liabilities                                        437           2,953           25,940            -             
29,330
Stockholders' equity:
  Class A and class B common stock                       448           6,434           64,867         (71,301)            
448
  Additional paid-in capital                         267,655         742,343          436,466      (1,178,809)        
267,655
  Retained earnings                                  455,864       1,086,311           24,109      (1,110,486)        
455,798
  Accumulated other comprehensive
    income (loss)                                      1,096          (1,012)         (26,088)           -            
(26,004)
  Treasury stock and other                           (81,629)           -                -               -            
(81,629)
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
      Total stockholders' equity                     643,434       1,834,076          499,354      (2,360,596)        
616,268
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
  Total liabilities and
    stockholders' equity                         $ 2,152,422    $  2,003,398    $     716,945    $ (2,360,596)   $  



2,512,169
                                                 ===========    ============    =============    ============    
============

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Income
- -------------------------------------------
for the Three Months Ended May 31, 2001
- ---------------------------------------
Gross sales                                      $   194,126    $    452,541    $     256,425    $    (67,318)   $    
835,774
  Less - excise taxes                                (30,388)       (102,215)         (61,061)           -           
(193,664)
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
    Net sales                                        163,738         350,326          195,364         (67,318)        
642,110
Cost of product sold                                (112,487)       (248,875)        (146,124)         67,326        
(440,160)
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
    Gross profit                                      51,251         101,451           49,240               8         
201,950
Selling, general and administrative
  expenses                                           (41,696)        (52,230)         (38,101)           -           
(132,027)
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
    Operating income                                   9,555          49,221           11,139               8          
69,923
Interest expense, net                                 (5,365)        (23,539)          (1,281)           -            
(30,185)
Equity earnings in subsidiary                         17,970           6,329             -            (24,299)           
-
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
    Income before income taxes                        22,160          32,011            9,858         (24,291)         
39,738
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes              1,675         (14,041)          (3,529)           -            
(15,895)
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
Net income                                       $    23,835    $     17,970    $       6,329    $    (24,291)   $     
23,843
                                                 ===========    ============    =============    ============    
============

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Income
- -------------------------------------------
for the Three Months Ended May 31, 2000
- ---------------------------------------
Gross sales                                      $   168,387    $    443,183    $     241,003    $    (78,051)   $    
774,522
  Less - excise taxes                                (30,974)       (102,410)         (55,558)           -           
(188,942)
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
    Net sales                                        137,413         340,773          185,445         (78,051)        
585,580
Cost of product sold                                (100,738)       (245,819)        (133,186)         78,036        
(401,707)
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
    Gross profit                                      36,675          94,954           52,259             (15)        
183,873
Selling, general and administrative
  expenses                                           (38,393)        (50,112)         (37,904)           -           
(126,409)
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
    Operating income                                  (1,718)         44,842           14,355             (15)         
57,464
Interest expense, net                                 (6,194)        (20,272)          (1,161)           -            
(27,627)
Equity earnings in subsidiary                         22,664           8,688             -            (31,352)           
-
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
    Income before income taxes                        14,752          33,258           13,194         (31,367)         
29,837
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes              3,165         (10,594)          (4,506)           -            
(11,935)
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
Net income                                       $    17,917    $     22,664    $       8,688    $    (31,367)   $     
17,902



                                                 ===========    ============    =============    ============    
============
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<CAPTION>
                                                   Parent        Subsidiary      Subsidiary
                                                   Company       Guarantors     Nonguarantors    Eliminations    
Consolidated
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
(in thousands)
<S>                                              <C>            <C>             <C>              <C>             
<C>
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
- -----------------------------------------------
for the Three Months Ended May 31, 2001
- ---------------------------------------
Net cash provided by operating
  activities                                     $    30,101    $      1,758    $       2,738    $       -       $     
34,597

Cash flows from investing activities:
  Purchases of businesses, net of
    cash acquired                                   (329,284)            501             -               -           
(328,783)
  Purchases of property, plant and
    equipment                                           (985)         (6,881)          (2,972)           -            
(10,838)
  Other                                                 -                224              144            -                
368
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
Net cash used in investing activities               (330,269)         (6,156)          (2,828)           -           
(339,253)
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------

Cash flows from financing activities:
  Proceeds from equity offering, net
    of fees                                          139,878            -                -               -            
139,878
  Net proceeds from notes payable                     20,000            -               1,162                          
21,162
  Exercise of employee stock options                   4,797            -                -               -              
4,797
  Principal payments of long-term debt                  (599)           (315)          (1,060)           -             
(1,974)
  Payment of issuance costs of
    long-term debt                                    (1,014)           -                -               -             
(1,014)
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
Net cash provided by (used in)
  financing activities                               163,062            (315)             102            -            
162,849
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------

Effect of exchange rate changes on
  cash and cash investments                           (4,998)          5,043             (171)           -               
(126)
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------

Net (decrease) increase in cash
  and cash investments                              (142,104)            330             (159)           -           
(141,933)
Cash and cash investments, beginning
  of period                                          142,104           3,239              329            -            
145,672
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
Cash and cash investments, end of
  period                                         $      -       $      3,569    $         170    $       -       $      
3,739
                                                 ===========    ============    =============    ============    
============

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
- -----------------------------------------------
for the Three Months Ended May 31, 2000
- ---------------------------------------
Net cash provided by (used in)
  operating activities                           $    45,866    $     (9,465)   $     (16,430)   $       -       $     
19,971



Cash flows from investing activities:
  Purchases of property, plant and
    equipment                                           (753)         (6,335)          (3,177)           -            
(10,265)
  Other                                                 -                 79              238            -                
317
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
Net cash used in investing activities                   (753)         (6,256)          (2,939)           -             
(9,948)
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------

Cash flows from financing activities:
  Principal payments of long-term debt              (132,950)            (16)            (363)           -           
(133,329)
  Net repayments of notes payable                    (16,800)           -                -               -            
(16,800)
  Payment of issuance costs of
    long-term debt                                    (1,301)           -                -               -             
(1,301)
  Proceeds from issuance of long-term
    debt, net of discount                            119,400            -                -               -            
119,400
  Exercise of employee stock options                   1,973            -                -               -              
1,973
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
Net cash used in financing activities                (29,678)            (16)            (363)           -            
(30,057)
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------

Effect of exchange rate changes on
  cash and cash investments                          (15,416)         16,236           (1,070)           -               
(250)
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
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<CAPTION>
                                                   Parent        Subsidiary      Subsidiary
                                                   Company       Guarantors     Nonguarantors    Eliminations    
Consolidated
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
(in thousands)
<S>                                              <C>            <C>             <C>              <C>             
<C>
Net increase (decrease) in cash
  and cash investments                                    19             499          (20,802)           -            
(20,284)
Cash and cash investments, beginning
  of period                                             -                231           34,077            -             
34,308
                                                 -----------    ------------    -------------    ------------    -
-----------
Cash and cash investments, end of
  period                                         $        19    $        730    $      13,275    $       -       $     
14,024
                                                 ===========    ============    =============    ============    
============
</TABLE>

9)   BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION:

     The Company  reports its operating  results in five  segments:  Canandaigua
Wine (branded  popular and premium wine and brandy,  and other,  primarily grape
juice concentrate); Barton (primarily beer and distilled spirits); Matthew Clark
(branded wine,  cider and bottled water,  and wholesale wine,  cider,  distilled
spirits, beer and soft drinks);  Franciscan (primarily branded super-premium and
ultra-premium  wine) and Corporate  Operations  and Other  (primarily  corporate
related  items).  Segment  selection  was  based  upon  internal  organizational
structure,  the way in which these operations are managed and their  performance
evaluated by management and the Company's Board of Directors,  the  availability
of separate financial results,  and materiality  considerations.  The accounting
policies of the segments are the same as those  described for the Company in the
Summary  of  Significant   Accounting  Policies  in  Note  1  to  the  Company's
consolidated  financial  statements  included in the Company's  Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended  February  28, 2001.  The Company  evaluates
performance based on operating income of the respective business units.

     Segment information is as follows:



                                              For the Three Months
                                                   Ended May 31,
                                         -------------------------------
                                             2001                2000
                                         -----------         -----------
(in thousands)
Canandaigua Wine:
- -----------------
Net sales:
  Branded:
    External customers                   $   166,081         $   143,330
    Intersegment                               1,745               1,236
                                         -----------         -----------
    Total Branded                            167,826             144,566
                                         -----------         -----------
  Other:
    External customers                        13,549              15,268
    Intersegment                               3,689               3,629
                                         -----------         -----------
    Total Other                               17,238              18,897
                                         -----------         -----------
Net sales                                $   185,064         $   163,463
Operating income                         $    15,395         $     7,818
Long-lived assets                        $   230,260         $   192,337
Total assets                             $   966,466         $   596,543
Capital expenditures                     $     1,489         $     2,645
Depreciation and amortization            $     8,116         $     5,868
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                                              For the Three Months
                                                   Ended May 31,
                                         -------------------------------
                                             2001                2000
                                         -----------         -----------
(in thousands)
Barton:
- -------
Net sales:
  Beer                                   $   182,985         $   163,134
  Spirits                                     71,317              72,546
                                         -----------         -----------
Net sales                                $   254,302         $   235,680
Operating income                         $    44,051         $    38,835
Long-lived assets                        $    78,136         $    77,956
Total assets                             $   734,345         $   716,633
Capital expenditures                     $     2,924         $     1,336
Depreciation and amortization            $     4,762         $     3,955

Matthew Clark:
- --------------
Net sales:
  Branded:
    External customers                   $    66,881         $    69,594
    Intersegment                                 102                  21
                                         -----------         -----------
    Total Branded                             66,983              69,615
  Wholesale                                  115,006              99,923
                                         -----------         -----------
Net sales                                $   181,989         $   169,538
Operating income                         $     8,317         $    10,374
Long-lived assets                        $   140,710         $   148,103
Total assets                             $   622,334         $   629,030
Capital expenditures                     $     2,030         $     2,409
Depreciation and amortization            $     4,673         $     5,213

Franciscan:
- -----------
Net sales:
  External customers                     $    26,291         $    21,785
  Intersegment                                   102                 104
                                         -----------         -----------
Net sales                                $    26,393         $    21,889
Operating income                         $     7,048         $     5,416
Long-lived assets                        $   129,499         $   108,694
Total assets                             $   396,209         $   361,036
Capital expenditures                     $     3,969         $     3,780
Depreciation and amortization            $     3,223         $     2,392

Corporate Operations and Other:
- -------------------------------
Net sales                                $      -            $      -
Operating loss                           $    (4,888)        $    (4,979)
Long-lived assets                        $     4,465         $     3,901
Total assets                             $    20,339         $    23,858
Capital expenditures                     $       426         $        95



Depreciation and amortization            $     1,151         $       918

Intersegment eliminations:
- --------------------------
Net sales                                $    (5,638)        $    (4,990)

Consolidated:
- -------------
Net sales                                $   642,110         $   585,580
Operating income                         $    69,923         $    57,464
Long-lived assets                        $   583,070         $   530,991
Total assets                             $ 2,739,693         $ 2,327,100
Capital expenditures                     $    10,838         $    10,265
Depreciation and amortization            $    21,925         $    18,346
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10)  COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

     Comprehensive  income consists of net income,  foreign currency translation
adjustments  and net unrealized  losses on derivative  instruments for the three
months  ended  May 31,  2001 and  2000.  The  reconciliation  of net  income  to
comprehensive income is as follows:

                                                   For the Three Months
                                                       Ended May 31,
                                                 ------------------------
                                                    2001          2000
                                                 ----------    ----------
(in thousands)
Net income                                       $   23,843    $   17,902
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
  Foreign currency translation adjustments           (4,314)      (11,266)
  Cash flow hedges:
    Net derivative gains, net of tax
      effect of $79                                     172          -
    Reclassification adjustments, net of
      tax effect of $103                               (229)         -
                                                 ----------    ----------
  Net cash flow hedges                                  (57)         -
                                                 ----------    ----------
Total comprehensive income                       $   19,472    $    6,636
                                                 ==========    ==========

     Accumulated other comprehensive loss includes the following components:

                                   For the Three Months Ended May 31, 2001
                             --------------------------------------------------
                                Foreign            Net             Accumulated
                               Currency         Unrealized            Other
                              Translation        Losses on        Comprehensive
                              Adjustments       Derivatives           Loss
                             ------------      -------------      -------------
Beginning balance,
  February 28, 2001          $    (26,004)     $        -         $     (26,004)
Current-period change              (4,314)               (57)            (4,371)
                             ------------      -------------      -------------
Ending balance,
  May 31, 2001               $    (30,318)     $         (57)     $     (30,375)
                             ============      =============      =============

11)  ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS:

     In May 2000, the Emerging  Issues Task Force ("EITF") issued EITF Issue No.
00-14 ("EITF No. 00-14"),  "Accounting for Certain Sales  Incentives," which was
subsequently  amended in April 2001. EITF No. 00-14  addresses the  recognition,
measurement and income  statement  classification  of certain sales  incentives.
EITF No. 00-14 requires that sales incentives, including coupons, rebate offers,
and free product offers,  given concurrently with a single exchange  transaction
be recognized when incurred and reported as a reduction of revenue.  The Company
currently reports these costs in selling,  general and administrative  expenses.
The  Company is  required to adopt EITF No.  00-14 in its  financial  statements
beginning March 1, 2002. Upon adoption of EITF No. 00-14,  financial  statements
for prior periods  presented for comparative  purposes are to be reclassified to
comply with the  requirements of EITF No. 00-14. The Company believes the impact
of EITF  No.  00-14  on its  financial  statements  will  result  in a  material
reclassification  that will decrease  previously reported net sales and decrease
previously reported selling,  general and administrative expenses, but will have
no effect on operating income or net income.  The Company has not yet determined
the amount of the reclassification.

12)  SUBSEQUENT EVENT:

     On July 2, 2001, the Company acquired all of the outstanding  capital stock



of Ravenswood Winery,  Inc.  ("Ravenswood").  The preliminary  purchase price of
Ravenswood,  including assumption of indebtedness (net of cash acquired) of $3.2
million,  was $151.2  million.  The purchase  price is subject to final  closing
adjustments  which the Company  does not expect to be material.  The  Ravenswood
acquisition  will be accounted for using the purchase method;  accordingly,  the
acquired  net  assets  will be
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recorded at fair market value at the date of acquisition based upon an appraisal
of the net assets.  The  acquisition was financed with revolving loan borrowings
under the senior credit facility. The Company will manage Ravenswood through its
Franciscan segment.

ITEM 2.  MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
- -------  -----------------------------------------------------------------------
         OF OPERATIONS
         -------------

INTRODUCTION
- ------------

     The Company is a leader in the production and marketing of beverage alcohol
brands in North America and the United Kingdom, and a leading independent drinks
wholesaler in the United  Kingdom.  As the second largest  supplier of wine, the
second  largest  importer of beer and the fourth  largest  supplier of distilled
spirits, the Company is the largest single-source  supplier of these products in
the United States.  In the United Kingdom,  the Company is a leading marketer of
wine and the second largest producer and marketer of cider.

     The Company  reports its operating  results in five  segments:  Canandaigua
Wine (branded  popular and premium wine and brandy,  and other,  primarily grape
juice concentrate); Barton (primarily beer and distilled spirits); Matthew Clark
(branded wine,  cider, and bottled water, and wholesale wine,  cider,  distilled
spirits, beer and soft drinks);  Franciscan (primarily branded super-premium and
ultra-premium  wine); and Corporate  Operations and Other  (primarily  corporate
related items).

     On April 10,  2001,  the  Board of  Directors  of the  Company  approved  a
two-for-one  stock split of both the Company's  Class A Common Stock and Class B
Common Stock,  which was  distributed in the form of a stock dividend on May 14,
2001, to stockholders of record on April 30, 2001.  Pursuant to the terms of the
stock  dividend,  each holder of Class A Common Stock  received  one  additional
share of Class A stock for each share of Class A stock held,  and each holder of
Class B Common  Stock  received one  additional  share of Class B stock for each
share of Class B stock held.  All share and per share amounts in this  Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q are adjusted to give effect to the common stock split.

     The following  discussion and analysis  summarizes the significant  factors
affecting  (i)  consolidated  results of operations of the Company for the three
months ended May 31, 2001 ("First Quarter  2002"),  compared to the three months
ended May 31, 2000 ("First  Quarter  2001"),  and (ii)  financial  liquidity and
capital resources for First Quarter 2002. This discussion and analysis should be
read in conjunction  with the Company's  consolidated  financial  statements and
notes thereto  included  herein and in the Company's  Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2001 ("Fiscal 2001").

ACQUISITIONS IN FISCAL 2002 AND FISCAL 2001

     On July 2, 2001, the Company acquired all of the outstanding  capital stock
of Ravenswood Winery, Inc. ("Ravenswood"), a leading premium wine producer based
in Sonoma, California.  Ravenswood produces, markets and sells super-premium and
ultra-premium  California  wine primarily  under the Ravenswood  brand name. The
vast majority of the wine Ravenswood  produces and sells is red wine,  including
the number one  super-premium  Zinfandel in the United States.  The Company will
manage Ravenswood through its Franciscan segment. The Ravenswood  acquisition is
in line with the Company's  strategy of further  penetrating the faster growing,
higher gross profit margin super-premium and ultra-premium wine categories.

     On March 26, 2001, in an asset  acquisition,  the Company  acquired certain
wine  brands,  wineries,  working  capital  (primarily  inventories),  and other
related  assets  from  Corus  Brands,   Inc.  (the  "Corus
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Assets").  In this acquisition,  the Company acquired several well-known premium
wine brands  primarily sold in the northwestern  United States,  including Covey
Run,   Columbia,   Ste.  Chapelle  and  Alice  White.  In  connection  with  the
transaction,  the Company also entered into  long-term  grape supply  agreements
with  affiliates  of Corus  Brands,  Inc.  covering  more  than  1,000  acres of
Washington  and Idaho  vineyards.  The results of operations of the Corus Assets
are  reported in the  Canandaigua  Wine  segment  and have been  included in the
consolidated results of operations of the Company since the date of acquisition.



     On March 5, 2001, in an asset  acquisition,  the Company  acquired  several
well-known premium wine brands,  including Vendange,  Nathanson Creek, Heritage,
and Talus, working capital (primarily inventories),  two wineries in California,
and other related  assets from  Sebastiani  Vineyards,  Inc. and Tuolomne  River
Vintners Group (the "Turner Road Vintners Assets"). The results of operations of
the Turner Road Vintners Assets are reported in the Canandaigua Wine segment and
have been  included in the  consolidated  results of  operations  of the Company
since the date of  acquisition.  The  acquisition  of the Turner  Road  Vintners
Assets is significant  and the Company  expects it to have a material  impact on
the Company's future results of operations.

     On October 27,  2000,  the  Company  purchased  all of the issued  Ordinary
Shares and Preference Shares of Forth Wines Limited ("Forth Wines"). The results
of  operations of Forth Wines are reported in the Matthew Clark segment and have
been included in the consolidated results of operations of the Company since the
date of acquisition.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
- ---------------------

FIRST QUARTER 2002 COMPARED TO FIRST QUARTER 2001

     NET SALES

     The  following  table sets forth the net sales (in thousands of dollars) by
operating segment of the Company for First Quarter 2002 and First Quarter 2001.

                               First Quarter 2002 Compared to First Quarter 2001
                               -------------------------------------------------
                                                  Net Sales
                               -------------------------------------------------
                                                                 %Increase/
                                        2002          2001       (Decrease)
                                     ----------    ----------    ----------
Canandaigua Wine:
  Branded:
    External customers               $  166,081    $  143,330      15.9 %
    Intersegment                          1,745         1,236      41.2 %
                                     ----------    ----------
    Total Branded                       167,826       144,566      16.1 %
                                     ----------    ----------
  Other:
    External customers                   13,549        15,268     (11.3)%
    Intersegment                          3,689         3,629       1.7 %
                                     ----------    ----------
    Total Other                          17,238        18,897      (8.8)%
                                     ----------    ----------
Canandaigua Wine net sales           $  185,064    $  163,463      13.2 %
                                     ----------    ----------
Barton:
  Beer                               $  182,985    $  163,134      12.2 %
  Spirits                                71,317        72,546      (1.7)%
                                     ----------    ----------
Barton net sales                     $  254,302    $  235,680       7.9 %
                                     ----------    ----------
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                               First Quarter 2002 Compared to First Quarter 2001
                               -------------------------------------------------
                                                  Net Sales
                               -------------------------------------------------
                                                                 %Increase/
                                        2002          2001       (Decrease)
                                     ----------    ----------    ----------
Matthew Clark:
  Branded:
    External customers               $   66,881    $   69,594      (3.9)%
    Intersegment                            102            21     385.7 %
                                     ----------    ----------
    Total Branded                        66,983        69,615      (3.8)%
  Wholesale                             115,006        99,923      15.1 %
                                     ----------    ----------
Matthew Clark net sales              $  181,989    $  169,538       7.3 %
                                     ----------    ----------
Franciscan:
  External customers                 $   26,291    $   21,785      20.7 %
  Intersegment                              102           104      (1.9)%
                                     ----------    ----------
Franciscan net sales                 $   26,393    $   21,889      20.6 %
                                     ----------    ----------
Corporate Operations and Other       $     -       $     -          N/A
                                     ----------    ----------
Intersegment eliminations            $   (5,638)   $   (4,990)     13.0 %
                                     ----------    ----------



Consolidated Net Sales               $  642,110    $  585,580       9.7 %
                                     ==========    ==========

     Net sales for First  Quarter 2002  increased to $642.1  million from $585.6
million for First Quarter 2001, an increase of $56.5 million, or 9.7%.

     Canandaigua Wine
     ----------------

     Net sales for  Canandaigua  Wine for First Quarter 2002 increased to $185.1
million  from  $163.5  million  for First  Quarter  2001,  an  increase of $21.6
million,  or 13.2%. This increase resulted primarily from $36.9 million of sales
of the newly  acquired  brands  from the Turner Road  Vintners  Assets and Corus
Assets  acquisitions  ("the  Acquisitions"),  both completed in March 2001. This
increase  was  partially  offset by declines in (i) other wine brands due to the
timing of seasonal  programming for First Quarter 2002 versus First Quarter 2001
and (ii) in the Company's grape juice concentrate business.

     Barton
     ------

     Net sales for Barton for First  Quarter 2002  increased  to $254.3  million
from $235.7  million for First Quarter 2001,  an increase of $18.6  million,  or
7.9%.  This increase  resulted  primarily from a 12.2% increase in imported beer
sales,  led by volume  growth in the Mexican beer  portfolio.  This increase was
partially  offset by a slight decrease in spirits sales as a result of lower net
selling prices from the  implementation  of a net pricing  strategy in the third
quarter of Fiscal 2001, which also resulted in lower promotion costs.

     Matthew Clark
     -------------

     Net sales for Matthew  Clark for First  Quarter  2002  increased  to $182.0
million  from  $169.5  million  for First  Quarter  2001,  an  increase of $12.5
million, or 7.3%. Excluding an adverse foreign currency impact of $14.6 million,
net sales  increased $27.1 million,  or 16.0%,  on a local currency basis.  This
local  currency  basis  increase  resulted  primarily  from a 24.8%  increase in
wholesale  sales,  with the majority of this growth  coming from organic  sales.
Additionally,  branded sales increased 4.2% with an increase in wine sales being
partially offset by a decrease in cider sales.
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     Franciscan
     ----------

     Net sales for  Franciscan for First Quarter 2002 increased to $26.4 million
from $21.9  million for First  Quarter  2001,  an increase of $4.5  million,  or
20.6%.  This increase  resulted  primarily from volume growth,  particularly  in
Veramonte, Estancia, Franciscan and Simi.

     GROSS PROFIT

     The Company's  gross profit  increased to $202.0  million for First Quarter
2002 from $183.9  million for First Quarter 2001, an increase of $18.1  million,
or 9.8%. The dollar  increase in gross profit  resulted  primarily from sales of
the newly acquired brands from the Acquisitions,  volume growth in the Company's
Mexican beer portfolio and volume growth in the Franciscan  fine wine portfolio.
These increases were partially offset by a decrease in Canandaigua  Wine's other
wine sales and an adverse foreign  currency  impact.  As a percent of net sales,
gross profit remained virtually unchanged at 31.5% for First Quarter 2002 versus
31.4% for First Quarter 2001.

     SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

     Selling,  general and  administrative  expenses increased to $132.0 million
for First  Quarter 2002 from $126.4  million for First Quarter 2001, an increase
of  $5.6  million,  or  4.4%.  The  dollar  increase  in  selling,  general  and
administrative  expenses resulted primarily from advertising and promotion costs
associated with the brands acquired in the  Acquisitions.  Selling,  general and
administrative  expenses as a percent of net sales  decreased to 20.6% for First
Quarter  2002 as compared to 21.6% for First  Quarter  2001 as (i) a decrease in
Barton spirits  advertising and promotion costs was greater than the decrease in
Barton  spirits  net  sales  and (ii) the  percent  increase  in  Matthew  Clark
wholesale  sales was greater than the percent  increase in selling,  general and
administrative expenses.

     OPERATING INCOME

     The following table sets forth the operating income/(loss) (in thousands of
dollars) by  operating  segment of the Company for First  Quarter 2002 and First
Quarter 2001.

                               First Quarter 2002 Compared to First Quarter 2001
                               -------------------------------------------------



                                            Operating Income/(Loss)
                               -------------------------------------------------
                                                                %Increase/
                                     2002           2001        (Decrease)
                                   --------       --------      ----------
Canandaigua Wine                   $ 15,395       $  7,818         96.9 %
Barton                               44,051         38,835         13.4 %
Matthew Clark                         8,317         10,374        (19.8)%
Franciscan                            7,048          5,416         30.1 %
Corporate Operations and Other       (4,888)        (4,979)        (1.8)%
                                   --------       --------
Consolidated Operating Income      $ 69,923       $ 57,464         21.7 %
                                   ========       ========

     As a result of the above factors,  consolidated  operating income increased
to $69.9  million for First  Quarter 2002 from $57.5  million for First  Quarter
2001, an increase of $12.5 million, or 21.7%.

     INTEREST EXPENSE, NET

     Net interest expense increased to $30.2 million for First Quarter 2002 from
$27.6 million for First Quarter 2001, an increase of $2.6 million,  or 9.3%. The
increase resulted primarily from an increase in
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average borrowings primarily due to the financing of the Acquisitions, partially
offset by a slight decrease in the average interest rate.

     NET INCOME

     As a result of the above factors, net income increased to $23.8 million for
First  Quarter 2002 from $17.9  million for First  Quarter  2001, an increase of
$5.9 million, or 33.2%.

     For  financial  analysis  purposes  only,  the  Company's  earnings  before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") for First Quarter 2002
were $91.8  million,  an increase of $16.0  million over EBITDA of $75.8 million
for First Quarter  2001.  EBITDA  should not be construed as an  alternative  to
operating  income or net cash flow from  operating  activities and should not be
construed  as  an  indication  of  operating  performance  or  as a  measure  of
liquidity.

FINANCIAL LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
- -----------------------------------------

GENERAL

     The  Company's  principal  use of cash in its  operating  activities is for
purchasing and carrying  inventories.  The Company's primary source of liquidity
has historically  been cash flow from operations,  except during the annual fall
grape harvests when the Company has relied on short-term borrowings.  The annual
grape crush  normally  begins in August and runs  through  October.  The Company
generally  begins  purchasing  grapes in August  with  payments  for such grapes
beginning to come due in  September.  The  Company's  short-term  borrowings  to
support  such  purchases  generally  reach their  highest  levels in November or
December. Historically, the Company has used cash flow from operating activities
to repay  its  short-term  borrowings.  The  Company  will  continue  to use its
short-term borrowings to support its working capital  requirements.  The Company
believes  that  cash  provided  by  operating   activities   and  its  financing
activities,  primarily short-term borrowings, will provide adequate resources to
satisfy its working  capital,  liquidity  and  anticipated  capital  expenditure
requirements for both its short-term and long-term capital needs.

FIRST QUARTER 2002 CASH FLOWS

     OPERATING ACTIVITIES

     Net cash provided by operating  activities for First Quarter 2002 was $34.6
million,  which  resulted from $46.8 million in net income  adjusted for noncash
items, less $12.3 million representing the net change in the Company's operating
assets and  liabilities.  The net  change in  operating  assets and  liabilities
resulted  primarily  from a  seasonal  increase  in  accounts  receivable  and a
decrease in accrued  excise taxes,  partially  offset by an increase in accounts
payable and a decrease in inventories.

     INVESTING ACTIVITIES AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

     Net cash used in  investing  activities  for First  Quarter 2002 was $339.3
million,  which resulted  primarily from net cash paid of $328.8 million for the
Acquisitions and $10.8 million of capital expenditures.
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     Net cash provided by financing activities for First Quarter 2002 was $162.8
million resulting  primarily from net proceeds of $139.9 million from the equity
offering and proceeds from $21.2 million of net revolving loan borrowings  under
the senior credit facility.

DEBT

     Total debt outstanding as of May 31, 2001, amounted to $1,392.0 million, an
increase of $26.2  million from  February  28, 2001.  The ratio of total debt to
total  capitalization  decreased to 64.1% as of May 31,  2001,  from 68.9% as of
February 28, 2001.

     SENIOR CREDIT FACILITY

     As of May 31,  2001,  under its senior  credit  facility,  the  Company had
outstanding  term loans of $336.0 million  bearing a weighted  average  interest
rate of 8.1%,  $20.0  million of  revolving  loans  bearing a  weighted  average
interest rate of 5.6%, undrawn revolving letters of credit of $11.9 million, and
$268.1 million in revolving loans available to be drawn.

     SENIOR NOTES

     As of May 31, 2001, the Company had  outstanding  $200.0 million  aggregate
principal  amount of 8 5/8% Senior Notes due August 2006 (the  "Senior  Notes").
The Senior Notes are currently redeemable, in whole or in part, at the option of
the Company.

     As of May 31, 2001, the Company had  outstanding  (pound)1.0  million ($1.4
million) aggregate principal amount of 8 1/2% Series B Senior Notes due November
2009 (the  "Sterling  Series B Senior  Notes").  In  addition,  the  Company had
outstanding   (pound)154.0   million  ($217.9  million,   net  of  $0.5  million
unamortized discount) aggregate principal amount of 8 1/2% Series C Senior Notes
due November 2009 (the "Sterling Series C Senior Notes") as of May 31, 2001. The
Sterling  Series B Senior Notes and Sterling Series C Senior Notes are currently
redeemable, in whole or in part, at the option of the Company.

     Also,  as of May 31,  2001,  the Company  had  outstanding  $200.0  million
aggregate  principal  amount of 8% Senior Notes due February 2008 (the "February
2001 Senior Notes"). The February 2001 Senior Notes are currently redeemable, in
whole or in part,  at the  option of the  Company.

     SENIOR SUBORDINATED NOTES

     As of May 31, 2001,  the Company had  outstanding  $195.0  million  ($193.5
million, net of $1.5 million unamortized discount) aggregate principal amount of
8 3/4% Senior  Subordinated Notes due December 2003 (the "Original Notes").  The
Original Notes are currently  redeemable,  in whole or in part, at the option of
the Company.

     Also,  as of May 31,  2001,  the Company  had  outstanding  $200.0  million
aggregate  principal amount of 8 1/2% Senior  Subordinated  Notes due March 2009
(the "Senior Subordinated  Notes"). The Senior Subordinated Notes are redeemable
at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, at any time on or after March
1,  2004.  The  Company  may also  redeem  up to  $70.0  million  of the  Senior
Subordinated  Notes using the  proceeds of certain  equity  offerings  completed
before March 1, 2002.
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EQUITY OFFERING

     During  March 2001,  the Company  completed a public  offering of 4,370,000
shares of its Class A Common  Stock  resulting  in net  proceeds to the Company,
after deducting  underwriting discounts and expenses, of $139.9 million. The net
proceeds were used to repay  revolving loan  borrowings  under the senior credit
facility of which a portion was incurred to partially finance the acquisition of
the Turner Road Vintners Assets.

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

     In May 2000, the Emerging  Issues Task Force ("EITF") issued EITF Issue No.
00-14 ("EITF No. 00-14"),  "Accounting for Certain Sales  Incentives," which was
subsequently  amended in April 2001. EITF No. 00-14  addresses the  recognition,
measurement and income  statement  classification  of certain sales  incentives.
EITF No. 00-14 requires that sales incentives, including coupons, rebate offers,
and free product offers,  given concurrently with a single exchange  transaction
be recognized when incurred and reported as a reduction of revenue.  The Company
currently reports these costs in selling,  general and administrative  expenses.
The  Company is  required to adopt EITF No.  00-14 in its  financial  statements
beginning March 1, 2002. Upon adoption of EITF No. 00-14,  financial  statements
for prior periods  presented for comparative  purposes are to be reclassified to
comply with the  requirements of EITF No. 00-14. The Company believes the impact
of EITF  No.  00-14  on its  financial  statements  will  result  in a  material
reclassification  that will decrease  previously reported net sales and decrease
previously reported selling,  general and administrative expenses, but will have



no effect on operating income or net income.  The Company has not yet determined
the amount of the reclassification.

EURO CONVERSION ISSUES

     Effective  January 1, 1999,  eleven of the fifteen member  countries of the
European Union (the  "Participating  Countries")  established  fixed  conversion
rates between their existing sovereign  currencies and the euro. For three years
after the  introduction  of the euro,  the  Participating  Countries can perform
financial  transactions  in either the euro or their original local  currencies.
This will result in a fixed  exchange  rate among the  Participating  Countries,
whereas the euro (and the  Participating  Countries'  currency  in tandem)  will
continue to float freely  against the U.S.  dollar and other  currencies  of the
non-participating  countries.  The Company  does not believe that the effects of
the conversion will have a material adverse effect on the Company's business and
operations.

INFORMATION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

     This Quarterly  Report on Form 10-Q contains  "forward-looking  statements"
within the meaning of Section 27A of the  Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E
of the Securities  Exchange Act of 1934.  These  forward-looking  statements are
subject  to a number of risks and  uncertainties,  many of which are  beyond the
Company's  control,  that could cause actual results to differ  materially  from
those  set forth  in,  or  implied  by,  such  forward-looking  statements.  All
statements  other than statements of historical facts included in this Quarterly
Report  on Form  10-Q,  including  statements  regarding  the  Company's  future
financial  position  and  prospects,   are   forward-looking   statements.   All
forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Quarterly Report on
Form  10-Q.  The  Company  undertakes  no  obligation  to update  or revise  any
forward-looking  statements,  whether  as a result  of new  information,  future
events or  otherwise.  For risk  factors  associated  with the  Company  and its
business,  which factors could cause actual  results to differ  materially  from
those set forth in, or implied  by, the  Company's  forward-looking  statements,
reference  should be made to the  Company's  Annual  Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended February 28, 2001.
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ITEM 3.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
- -------  ----------------------------------------------------------

     Information  about  market  risks for the three  months ended May 31, 2001,
does not differ  materially  from that discussed  under Item 7A in the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2001.

                           PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 6.  EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
- -------  --------------------------------

     (a)  See Index to Exhibits located on Page 28 of this Report.

     (b)  The following  Reports on Form 8-K were filed with the  Securities and
          Exchange Commission during the quarter ended May 31, 2001:

          (i)  Form 8-K dated March 6, 2001. This Form 8-K reported  information
               under Item 5 (Other Events).

          (ii) Form 8-K dated March 14, 2001. This Form 8-K reported information
               under Item 5 (Other Events).

          (iii)Form  8-K  dated  April  10,   2001.   This  Form  8-K   reported
               information under Item 5 (Other Events).

          (iv) Form 8-K dated April 12, 2001. This Form 8-K reported information
               under  Item 5  (Other  Events)  and  included  (i) the  Company's
               Consolidated  Balance Sheets as of February 28, 2001 and February
               29, 2000; (ii) the Company's Condensed Consolidated Statements of
               Income for the three months ended  February 28, 2001 and February
               29,  2000;  and  (iii)  the  Company's   Condensed   Consolidated
               Statements  of Income for the twelve  months  ended  February 28,
               2001 and February 29, 2000.
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                                   SIGNATURES

     Pursuant to the  requirements of the Securities  Exchange Act of 1934, each
Registrant  has duly  caused  this  report  to be  signed  on its  behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

                                        CONSTELLATION BRANDS, INC.



Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas F. Howe
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas F. Howe, Vice President,
                                           Corporate Reporting and Controller

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Executive Vice
                                           President and Chief Financial Officer
                                           (Principal Financial Officer and
                                           Principal Accounting Officer)

                                  SUBSIDIARIES

                                        BATAVIA WINE CELLARS, INC.

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas F. Howe
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas F. Howe, Controller

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Treasurer
                                           (Principal Financial Officer and
                                           Principal Accounting Officer)

                                        CANANDAIGUA WINE COMPANY, INC.

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas F. Howe
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas F. Howe, Controller

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Treasurer
                                           (Principal Financial Officer and
                                           Principal Accounting Officer)
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                                        CANANDAIGUA EUROPE LIMITED

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas F. Howe
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas F. Howe, Controller

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Treasurer
                                           (Principal Financial Officer and
                                           Principal Accounting Officer)

                                        CANANDAIGUA LIMITED

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas F. Howe
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas F. Howe, Authorized Officer

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Finance Director
                                           (Principal Financial Officer and
                                           Principal Accounting Officer)

                                        POLYPHENOLICS, INC.

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas F. Howe
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas F. Howe, Vice President and
                                           Controller

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Vice President
                                           and Treasurer (Principal Financial
                                           Officer and Principal Accounting
                                           Officer)



                                        ROBERTS TRADING CORP.

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas F. Howe
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas F. Howe, Controller

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, President
                                           and Treasurer (Principal Financial
                                           Officer and Principal Accounting
                                           Officer)
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                                        CANANDAIGUA B.V.

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Chief Financial
                                           Officer (On behalf of the Registrant
                                           and as Principal Financial Officer
                                           and Principal Accounting Officer)

                                        FRANCISCAN VINEYARDS, INC.

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas F. Howe
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas F. Howe, Vice President and
                                           Controller

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Vice President
                                           and Treasurer (Principal Financial
                                           Officer and Principal Accounting
                                           Officer)

                                        ALLBERRY, INC.

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas F. Howe
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas F. Howe, Vice President and
                                           Controller

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Vice President
                                           and Treasurer (Principal Financial
                                           Officer and Principal Accounting
                                           Officer)

                                        CLOUD PEAK CORPORATION

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas F. Howe
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas F. Howe, Vice President and
                                           Controller

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Vice President
                                           and Treasurer (Principal Financial
                                           Officer and Principal Accounting
                                           Officer)
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                                        M.J. LEWIS CORP.

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas F. Howe
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas F. Howe, Vice President and
                                           Controller

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Vice President
                                           and Treasurer (Principal Financial
                                           Officer and Principal Accounting



                                           Officer)

                                        MT. VEEDER CORPORATION

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas F. Howe
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas F. Howe, Vice President and
                                           Controller

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Vice President
                                           and Treasurer (Principal Financial
                                           Officer and Principal Accounting
                                           Officer)

                                        BARTON INCORPORATED

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Alexander L. Berk
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Alexander L. Berk, President and
                                           Chief Executive Officer

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Vice President
                                           (Principal Financial Officer and
                                           Principal Accounting Officer)

                                        BARTON BRANDS, LTD.

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Alexander L. Berk
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Alexander L. Berk, Executive Vice
                                           President

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Vice President
                                           (Principal Financial Officer and
                                           Principal Accounting Officer)
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                                        BARTON BEERS, LTD.

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Alexander L. Berk
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Alexander L. Berk, Executive Vice
                                           President

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S.  Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                            Thomas S. Summer, Vice President
                                            (Principal Financial Officer and
                                            Principal Accounting Officer)

                                        BARTON BRANDS OF CALIFORNIA, INC.

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Alexander L. Berk
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Alexander L. Berk, President

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Vice President
                                           (Principal Financial Officer and
                                           Principal Accounting Officer)

                                        BARTON BRANDS OF GEORGIA, INC.

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Alexander L. Berk
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Alexander L. Berk, President

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Vice President
                                           (Principal Financial Officer and
                                           Principal Accounting Officer)



                                        BARTON CANADA, LTD.

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Alexander L. Berk
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Alexander L. Berk, President

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Vice President
                                           (Principal Financial Officer and
                                           Principal Accounting Officer)
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                                        BARTON DISTILLERS IMPORT CORP.

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Alexander L. Berk
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Alexander L. Berk, President

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Vice President
                                           (Principal Financial Officer and
                                           Principal Accounting Officer)

                                        BARTON FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Troy J. Christensen
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Troy J. Christensen, President and
                                           Secretary

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Vice President
                                           (Principal Financial Officer and
                                           Principal Accounting Officer)

                                        STEVENS POINT BEVERAGE CO.

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Alexander L. Berk
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Alexander L. Berk, Executive Vice
                                           President

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Vice President
                                           (Principal Financial Officer and
                                           Principal Accounting Officer)

                                        MONARCH IMPORT COMPANY

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Alexander L. Berk
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Alexander L. Berk, President

Dated:  July 16, 2001                   By:/s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                           -------------------------------------
                                           Thomas S. Summer, Vice President
                                           (Principal Financial Officer and
                                           Principal Accounting Officer)
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                                INDEX TO EXHIBITS

(2)     PLAN  OF  ACQUISITION,   REORGANIZATION,   ARRANGEMENT,  LIQUIDATION  OR
        SUCCESSION.

2.1     Asset  Purchase  Agreement  dated as of  February  21, 1999 by and among
        Diageo Inc.,  UDV Canada  Inc.,  United  Distillers  Canada Inc. and the
        Company (filed as Exhibit 2 to the Company's  Current Report on Form 8-K
        dated April 9, 1999 and incorporated herein by reference).

2.2     Stock  Purchase  Agreement,  dated April 21,  1999,  between  Franciscan
        Vineyards, Inc., Agustin Huneeus, Agustin Francisco Huneeus, Jean-Michel
        Valette,  Heidrun  Eckes-Chantre Und Kinder  Beteiligungsverwaltung  II,



        GbR, Peter Eugen Eckes Und Kinder Beteiligungsverwaltung II, GbR, Harald
        Eckes-Chantre,  Christina  Eckes-Chantre,  Petra  Eckes-Chantre  and the
        Company  (filed as Exhibit 2.1 on the Company's  Current  Report on Form
        8-K dated June 4, 1999 and incorporated herein by reference).

2.3     Stock Purchase Agreement by and between  Canandaigua Wine Company,  Inc.
        (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Moet Hennessy, Inc. dated
        April 1, 1999 (filed as Exhibit 2.3 to the Company's Quarterly Report on
        Form 10-Q for the fiscal  quarter  ended May 31,  1999 and  incorporated
        herein by reference).

2.4     Purchase Agreement dated as of January 30, 2001, by and among Sebastiani
        Vineyards,  Inc.,  Tuolomne River Vintners  Group and  Canandaigua  Wine
        Company,  Inc. (a  wholly-owned  subsidiary  of the  Company)  (filed as
        Exhibit 2.5 to the  Company's  Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
        year ended February 28, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference).

2.5     Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among  Constellation  Brands,  Inc.,
        VVV Acquisition Corp. and Ravenswood Winery,  Inc. dated as of April 10,
        2001  (including a list briefly  identifying the contents of all omitted
        schedules   thereto)   (filed   herewith).   The  Company  will  furnish
        supplementally  to the Commission,  upon request,  a copy of any omitted
        schedule.

(3)     ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION AND BY-LAWS.

3.1     Restated  Certificate of  Incorporation of the Company (filed as Exhibit
        3.1 to the  Company's  Quarterly  Report  on Form  10-Q  for the  fiscal
        quarter ended August 31, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference).

3.2     By-Laws of the Company (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company's  Quarterly
        Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal  quarter  ended  August 31,  2000 and
        incorporated herein by reference).

(4)     INSTRUMENTS   DEFINING  THE  RIGHTS  OF  SECURITY   HOLDERS,   INCLUDING
        INDENTURES.

4.1     Amendment  No.  2 to the  Credit  Agreement,  dated  as of May 16,  2001
        between  the  Company,  certain  principal  subsidiaries,  and The Chase
        Manhattan  Bank,  as  administrative  agent  for  certain  banks  (filed
        herewith).

(10)    MATERIAL CONTRACTS.

10.1    Amendment  No.  2 to the  Credit  Agreement,  dated  as of May 16,  2001
        between  the  Company,  certain  principal  subsidiaries,  and The Chase
        Manhattan  Bank,  as  administrative  agent  for  certain  banks  (filed
        herewith as Exhibit 4.1).
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(11)    STATEMENT RE COMPUTATION OF PER SHARE EARNINGS.

        Computation of per share earnings (filed herewith).

(15)    LETTER RE UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION.

        Not applicable.

(18)    LETTER RE CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES.

        Not applicable.

(19)    REPORT FURNISHED TO SECURITY HOLDERS.

        Not applicable.

(22)    PUBLISHED  REPORT  REGARDING  MATTERS  SUBMITTED  TO A VOTE OF  SECURITY
        HOLDERS.

        Not applicable.

(23)    CONSENTS OF EXPERTS AND COUNSEL.

        Not applicable.

(24)    POWER OF ATTORNEY.

        Not applicable.

(99)    ADDITIONAL EXHIBITS.

        Not applicable.
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                          AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

     AGREEMENT  AND  PLAN  OF  MERGER,   dated  as  of  April  10,  2001,  (this
"Agreement"),  by and among Ravenswood  Winery,  Inc., a California  corporation
(the "Company"),  Constellation Brands, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Parent"),
and VVV Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation and an indirect,  wholly-owned
subsidiary of Parent ("Merger Sub").

                              W I T N E S S E T H :
                              ---------------------

     WHEREAS,  the board of  directors  of each of  Parent,  Merger  Sub and the
Company have each  determined  that it is advisable and in the best interests of
their  respective  shareholders  for Parent to enter into a  strategic  business
combination  with the Company upon the terms and subject to the  conditions  set
forth herein;

     WHEREAS,  in  furtherance of such  combination,  the boards of directors of
Parent,  Merger Sub and the Company have each  approved the merger of Merger Sub
with and into the Company upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth
herein;

     WHEREAS,  concurrently  with the execution and delivery of this  Agreement,
and as a condition  and  inducement  to Parent and Merger Sub to enter into this



Agreement,  certain  shareholders  of  the  Company  have  entered  into  Voting
Agreements with Parent;

     NOW, THEREFORE,  in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants
and  agreements  herein  contained,  and  intending to be legally  bound hereby,
Parent, Merger Sub and the Company hereby agree as follows:

                                    ARTICLE I
                              DEFINITIONS AND TERMS

     Section 1.1 DEFINITIONS.

          (a) The following terms, as used herein, have the following meanings:

     "Affiliate"  shall  have  the  meaning  set  forth  in  Rule  12b-2  of the
regulations promulgated under the Exchange Act.

     "Agreement"  means this  Agreement  and Plan of Merger,  as the same may be
amended or supplemented from time to time in accordance with the terms hereof.

     "Alternative  Transaction"  means any of the  following:  (i) a transaction
pursuant to which any Third Party (or group of Third  Parties) seeks to acquire,
directly  or  indirectly,  more than 25  percent  of the  outstanding  shares of
Company Common Stock,  whether from the Company or pursuant to a tender offer or
exchange  offer or  otherwise  (other than upon  exercise  of the Company  Stock
Options,  upon exercise of Purchase  Rights under the Company ESPP or conversion
of the Company Debentures),  (ii) a merger,  recapitalization,  consolidation or
other  business  combination  involving the Company  pursuant to which any Third
Party acquires more than 25 percent of the
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outstanding equity securities of the Company or the entity surviving such merger
or business combination, (iii) any other transaction pursuant to which any Third
Party acquires control of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company,
or (iv) any combination of the foregoing.

     "Applicable Law" means, with respect to any Person, any domestic,  foreign,
federal,   state  or  local  statute,  law,  ordinance,   rule,   administrative
interpretation, regulation, order, writ, injunction, directive, judgment, decree
or other requirement of any Governmental  Authority applicable to such Person or
any of its Affiliates or any of their respective properties,  assets,  officers,
directors, employees,  consultants or agents (in connection with such officer's,
director's,  employee's,  consultant's  or agent's  activities on behalf of such
Person or any of its Affiliates).

     "Business  Day" means a day other than a  Saturday,  Sunday or other day on
which commercial  banks in San Francisco,  California are authorized or required
by law to close.

     "California Code" means the California Corporations Code and all amendments
and additions thereto.

     "Certificate"  means a stock  certificate  representing  shares of  Company
Common Stock.

     "Closing" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2 hereof.

     "Closing Date" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2 hereof.

     "COBRA" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.11(a)(vii) hereof.

     "Code"  means  the  Internal  Revenue  Code of  1986,  as  amended,  or any
successor thereto.

     "Company" has the meaning set forth in the Preamble hereof.

     "Company  Common  Stock"  means the  Common  Stock,  no par  value,  of the
Company.

     "Company Debenture" means each of the Convertible  Subordinated  Debentures
of the Company due December  31,  2008,  in the  aggregate  principal  amount of
$1,687,500.

     "Company's   Disclosure  Letter"  means  the  written  disclosure  schedule
delivered by the Company to Parent and Merger Sub in  connection  with and prior
to the execution and delivery of this Agreement.

     "Company  Employee  Plans" means all bonus,  stock option,  stock purchase,
incentive,   deferred  compensation,   supplemental  retirement,   unemployment,
severance,  vacation,  insurance or hospitalization program and any other fringe
or employee  benefit plans,  programs or arrangements  for any current or former



Employee, director, consultant
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or agent,  and any current or former  employment  or executive  compensation  or
severance agreements,  written or otherwise, for the benefit of, or relating to,
any employee of the Company,  and  excluding  agreements  with former  employees
under which the Company has no remaining monetary obligations.

     "Company  ESPP"  means the  Employee  Stock  Purchase  Plan for  Ravenswood
Winery, Inc.

     "Company Permits" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.13(b) hereof.

     "Company  Preferred  Stock" means the Preferred Stock, no par value, of the
Company.

     "Company SEC Reports" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.8(a) hereof.

     "Company Stock Options" means the outstanding options to purchase shares of
Company Common Stock under the Company Stock Plan.

     "Company  Stock  Plan"  means  the  Ravenswood  Winery,  Inc.  1999  Equity
Incentive Plan.

     "Confidentiality  Agreement"  has the meaning  set forth in Section  6.3(a)
hereof.

     "Continuing Employees" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.11(a) hereof.

     "Contract" means any contract,  agreement,  undertaking,  indenture,  note,
bond, loan, instrument,  lease, mortgage, commitment or other binding agreement,
whether written or oral.

     "Damages" means the amount of any loss, damage, injury,  liability,  claim,
fee, demand, settlement, judgment, award, fine, penalty, tax, charge or cost.

     "Dissenting Shares" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4(h)(i) hereof.

     "Effective Time" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.3 hereof.

     "Employee" means an employee of the Company,  including any employee of the
Company who is on leave of absence or on layoff status.

     "Environmental Laws" means any federal,  state or local laws (whether under
common law, statute, rule, regulation or otherwise),  requirements under permits
issued with respect thereto, and other requirements of Governmental  Authorities
relating to the  environment,  any  Hazardous  Substance,  or to any  activities
involving Hazardous Substances or occupational health and safety, including, but
not limited to, the Clean Air Act, As Amended,  42 U.S.C.  Section 7401 Et Seq.;
The Federal Water Pollution Control Act, As Amended,  33 U.S.C.  Section 1251 Et
Seq.; The Resource  Conservation And Recovery Act Of 1976, As Amended, 42 U.S.C.
Section 6901 Et Seq.; The Comprehensive  Environment Response,  Compensation And
Liability Act Of 1980, As
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Amended  (Including The Superfund  Amendments And  Reauthorization  Act Of 1986,
"CERCLA"),  42 U.S.C. Section 9601 Et Seq.; The Toxic Substances Control Act, As
Amended, 15 U.S.C. Section 2601 Et Seq.; The Occupational Safety And Health Act,
As  Amended,  29 U.S.C.  Section  651,  The  Emergency  Planning  And  Community
Right-To-Know  Act Of 1986, 42 U.S.C.  Section 11001 Et Seq.;  The Safe Drinking
Water Act, As Amended, 42 U.S.C. Section 300f Et Seq.

     "ERISA"  means the Employee  Retirement  Income  Security  Act of 1974,  as
amended.

     "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

     "Final Date" has the meaning set forth in Section 8.1(b) hereof.

     "GAAP" means United States generally accepted accounting principles applied
on a consistent basis throughout the periods involved.

     "Governmental  Authority" means any territorial,  federal,  state or local,
whether domestic,  foreign or supranational,  governmental or quasi-governmental
authority,  instrumentality,  court, commission,  tribunal or organization;  any
regulatory, administrative or other agency; any self-regulatory organization; or
any  political  or  other  subdivision,  department  or  branch  of  any  of the
foregoing.



     "Hazardous Substance" means any substance, material, chemical or waste that
is listed,  or  contains  material  amounts of one or more  components  that are
defined,  designated  or  classified as  hazardous,  acutely  hazardous,  toxic,
radioactive or dangerous under any applicable  Environmental Law, as well as any
"solid waste",  industrial  waste,  industrial  wastewater  sewage,  asbestos or
asbestos  containing  material,  petroleum  and any  derivative  or  by-products
thereof,  crude oil or any fraction  thereof,  natural gas, natural gas liquids,
liquefied  natural  gas,  synthetic  gas  useable  as fuel,  or  polychlorinated
biphenyls (PCBs).

     "HSR Act" means the Hart-Scott-Rodino  Antitrust  Improvements Act of 1976,
as amended.

     "IRS" means the United States Internal Revenue Service.

     "Knowledge of the Company"  means the actual  knowledge of the directors of
the Company and Kimberly Dryer.

     "Law" means any federal,  state, foreign or local law, statute,  ordinance,
rule, regulation, order, judgment or decree.

     "Lease Agreements" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.14(a) hereof.

     "Leased  Personal  Property"  has the meaning set forth in Section  3.17(a)
hereof.

     "Leased Real Property" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.14(a) hereof.
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     "Liens" means liens, security interests,  options, rights of first refusal,
easements,   mortgages,   charges,  pledges,  deeds  of  trust,   rights-of-way,
restrictions,  encroachments, licenses, leases, permits, security agreements, or
any  other  encumbrances,  restrictions  or  limitations  on the  use of real or
personal property, whether or not they constitute specific or floating charges.

     "Material  Adverse Effect" means a material  adverse effect (or combination
of effects  materially  adverse in the  aggregate) on the  financial  condition,
business or results of  operations of the Company,  taken as a whole;  provided,
however,  that a Material Adverse Effect shall not include changes in the market
price or trading volume of the Company's securities or any effect resulting from
any  change  (i) in Law,  GAAP or  interpretations  thereof  that  apply  to the
Company, (ii) in general economic or business conditions or in the wine industry
generally (which changes do not disproportionately affect the Company), or (iii)
due  to  the  public   announcement  of  this  Agreement  or  the   transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, or the consummation of such transactions.

     "Material Contracts" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.12(a) hereof.

     "Merger" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.

     "Merger  Consideration"  has the  meaning  set forth in  Section  2.4(e)(i)
hereof.

     "Merger Sub" has the meaning set forth in the Preamble hereof.

     "NASD" means the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.

     "Nasdaq" means the Nasdaq National Market.

     "NYSE" means the New York Stock Exchange.

     "Owned Real Property" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.14(a) hereof.

     "Parent" has the meaning set forth in the Preamble hereof.

     "Parent  Material  Adverse  Effect"  means a  material  adverse  effect (or
combination  of effects  materially  adverse in the  aggregate) on the financial
condition,  business  or results  of  operations  of  Parent,  taken as a whole;
provided,  however,  that a Parent  Material  Adverse  Effect  shall not include
changes in the market price or trading volume of the Parent's  securities or any
effect,  resulting from any change in Law, GAAP or interpretations  thereof that
apply to Parent,  in general  economic  or  business  conditions  or in the wine
industry (which changes do not disproportionately  affect Parent), or due to the
public announcement of the transactions contemplated under this Agreement or the
consummation of such transactions.

     "Parent's   Disclosure  Letter"  means  the  written  disclosure   schedule
delivered to Company by the Parent in connection with and prior to the execution
and delivery of this Agreement.
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     "Paying Agent" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.5(a) hereof.

     "Payment Fund" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.5(a) hereof.

     "Permitted Liens" means mechanics',  carriers',  workmen's,  repairmen's or
other like Liens arising or incurred in the ordinary  course of business  (which
are not overdue  for a period of more than 60 days or which are being  contested
in good faith by appropriate proceedings), Liens arising under original purchase
price  conditional  sales  Contracts  and  equipment  leases with Third  Parties
entered  into in the  ordinary  course of Business  (which are not overdue for a
period  of more  than 60 days or which  are  being  contested  in good  faith by
appropriate  proceedings),  Liens for taxes and other governmental  charges,  if
adequate  reserves  are  maintained,  which are not due and payable or which may
thereafter be paid without  penalty,  imperfections  of title,  restrictions  or
encumbrances,  which  imperfections  of title,  restrictions and encumbrances do
not,  individually or in the aggregate,  materially impair the continued use and
operation  of the  business  of the  Company,  taken  as a whole,  as  presently
conducted.

     "Person" means an individual, a corporation, a partnership, an association,
a trust or other entity or  organization,  including a  government  or political
subdivision or an agency or instrumentality thereof.

     "Proprietary  Asset"  means  any  patent,  patent  application,   trademark
(whether  registered  or  unregistered),  service  mark  application,  copyright
(whether registered or unregistered),  copyright application, maskwork, maskwork
application,   computer  software,   internet  domain   registrations  or  other
internet-related assets such as websites, invention or design.

     "Proxy Statement" means the proxy statement or information  statement to be
used by the Company to obtain the approval and  adoption of this  Agreement  and
the Merger by the shareholders of the Company.

     "Purchase Right" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4(f)(iii).

     "SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

     "Securities Act" means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

     "Shareholder Meeting" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.1 hereof.

     "Superior  Proposal" means a bona fide unsolicited written proposal made by
a Third Party relating to an Alternative  Transaction on terms that the board of
directors of the Company  determines in good faith and after  consultation  with
counsel would be, or is reasonably likely to be, more favorable to the Company's
shareholders  than the transactions  contemplated by this Agreement (taking into
account the legal,  financial,  regulatory and other aspects of the proposal and
the Person  making  the  proposal  and such  Person's  ability  to  finance  the
Alternative Transaction).

     "Surviving Corporation" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1 hereof.
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     "Tax" or "Taxes" means taxes, fees, levies,  duties,  tariffs,  imposts and
governmental impositions or charges of any kind in the nature of (or similar to)
taxes,  payable  to any  federal,  state,  local or  foreign  taxing  authority,
including (without limitation) (i) income,  franchise,  profits, gross receipts,
ad valorem, net worth, goods and services, fringe benefits,  withholding, sales,
use, service, real or personal property, special assessments,  license, payroll,
withholding,  employment,  social security, accident compensation,  unemployment
compensation,   utility,  severance,   production,  excise,  stamp,  occupation,
premiums,  windfall  profits,  transfer  and  gains  taxes  and  (ii)  interest,
penalties, additional taxes and additions to tax imposed with respect thereto.

     "Tax  Returns"  means  returns,  reports and  information  statements  with
respect  to  Taxes  required  to be  filed  with  the  IRS or any  other  taxing
authority,  domestic or foreign,  including,  without limitation,  consolidated,
combined and unitary tax returns.

     "Third  Party" means any Person other than a Party to this  Agreement or an
Affiliate of such a Party.

     "Voting Agreements" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.3 hereof.

     "WARN Act" means the Worker Adjustment Retraining Notification Act of 1988,
as amended.

     Section 1.2 OTHER TERMS.  Other terms may be defined  elsewhere in the text
of this  Agreement and,  unless  otherwise  indicated,  shall have such meanings
throughout this Agreement.



     Section 1.3 OTHER DEFINITIONAL PROVISIONS.

          (a) The words "herein,"  "hereof,"  "hereto" and "hereunder" and words
     of  similar  import,  when  used in this  Agreement,  shall  refer  to this
     Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of this Agreement.

          (b) The terms defined in the singular shall have a comparable  meaning
     when used in the plural, and vice versa.

          (c) The words "will" and "shall" have the same meaning and mean "must"
     unless the context otherwise requires.

                                   ARTICLE II
                                   THE MERGER

     Section 2.1 THE  MERGER.  Subject to and in  accordance  with the terms and
conditions  of this  Agreement,  the  Merger  Sub will  merge  with and into the
Company  (the  "Merger")  at  the  Effective  Time.  The  Company  shall  be the
corporation surviving the Merger (the "Surviving Corporation").

     Section 2.2 THE CLOSING.  The closing of the  transactions  contemplated by
this  Agreement  (the  "Closing")  shall take place at the offices of Morrison &
Foerster LLP, in
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San  Francisco,  California,  commencing at 10:00 a.m.  local time on the second
Business Day  following  the  satisfaction  or waiver of all  conditions  to the
obligations of the parties hereto to consummate  the  transactions  contemplated
hereby (other than  conditions  with respect to actions the  respective  parties
hereto will take at the Closing  itself) or such other date and  location as the
parties hereto may mutually determine (the "Closing Date").

     Section 2.3 EFFECTIVE  TIME.  On the Closing Date the parties  hereto shall
cause  the  Merger to be  consummated  by filing  all  necessary  documentation,
including  an  agreement  of merger  in the form  reasonably  acceptable  to the
parties  hereto with the  Secretary  of State of the State of  California  and a
certificate  of merger in the form  reasonably  acceptable to the parties hereto
with the  Secretary  of State of the  State of  Delaware.  The  Merger  shall be
effective  upon such filing of the  agreement  of merger with the  Secretary  of
State  of the  State  of  California  and the  certificate  of  merger  with the
Secretary  of State of the State of  Delaware,  or on such  later date as may be
specified therein (the time of such effectiveness being, the "Effective Time").

     Section 2.4 EFFECT OF MERGER.

          (a)  GENERAL.  The Merger shall have the effects set forth in Sections
     1107 and 1108 of the California  Code.  Without  limiting the generality of
     the  foregoing,  and subject  thereto,  at the Effective Time all property,
     rights,  powers,  privileges and franchises of Merger Sub shall vest in the
     Company as the Surviving Corporation, and all debts, liabilities and duties
     of  Merger  Sub shall  become  the  debts,  liabilities  and  duties of the
     Surviving Corporation. The Surviving Corporation may, at any time after the
     Effective  Time,  take any action  (including  executing and delivering any
     document)  in the name and on behalf of either the Company or Merger Sub in
     order to carry out and effectuate  the  transactions  contemplated  by this
     Agreement.

          (b) ARTICLES OF  INCORPORATION.  The Articles of  Incorporation of the
     Company, as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, shall be the
     Articles of  Incorporation  of the Surviving  Corporation  until amended as
     provided by law and such Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws.

          (c) BYLAWS.  The Bylaws of Merger Sub, as in effect  immediately prior
     to the Effective  Time,  shall be the Bylaws of the  Surviving  Corporation
     until  thereafter  amended  as  provided  by law and  such  Bylaws  and the
     Articles of Incorporation of the Company.

          (d) DIRECTORS AND  OFFICERS.  The directors of Merger Sub  immediately
     prior  to the  Effective  Time  shall  be the  directors  of the  Surviving
     Corporation,  each to hold  office  in  accordance  with  the  Articles  of
     Incorporation and Bylaws of the Surviving Corporation.  The officers of the
     Surviving Corporation at and after the Effective Time shall be the officers
     of the Company,  each to hold office in  accordance  with the Bylaws of the
     Surviving  Corporation.  The Company shall use  reasonable  best efforts to
     cause each  director of the Company to tender such  director's  resignation
     prior to the Effective  Time,  each such  resignation to be effective as of
     the Effective Time.
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          (e) CONVERSION OF COMPANY SHARES. At and as of the Effective Time,

               (i) each  outstanding  share of Company  Common Stock (other than
          Dissenting Shares and shares of Company Common Stock held by Parent or
          Merger  Sub)  shall be  converted  into the right to receive an amount
          (the  "Merger   Consideration")  equal  to  $29.50  in  cash  (without
          interest),  upon surrender of the  Certificate  formerly  representing
          such outstanding share of Company Common Stock in the manner set forth
          in Section 2.5, and as of the Effective Time, each  outstanding  share
          of Company Common Stock shall no longer be issued and  outstanding and
          shall automatically be cancelled and retired and shall cease to exist,
          and each holder of a  Certificate  shall cease to have any rights with
          respect thereto,  except the right to receive the Merger Consideration
          without  interest  (or, if  applicable,  to be treated as a Dissenting
          Share);

               (ii) each  Dissenting  Share  shall be  treated as  described  in
          Section 2.4 (h); or

               (iii) each share of  Company  Common  Stock held by the Parent or
          Merger Sub shall be cancelled and retired,  and no consideration shall
          be paid or delivered in exchange therefor; provided, however, that the
          Merger  Consideration shall be subject to equitable  adjustment in the
          event of any stock split,  stock  dividend,  reverse  stock split,  or
          other  change  in  the  number  of  shares  of  Company  Common  Stock
          outstanding to which Parent consents pursuant to Section 5.1. No share
          of Company  Common Stock shall be deemed to be  outstanding or to have
          any rights  other than those set forth  above in this  Section  2.4(e)
          after the Effective Time.

          (f) OPTIONS; STOCK PURCHASE PLAN.

               (i) Immediately prior to the Effective Time, each outstanding and
          vested  portion of a Company  Stock  Option  shall be  cancelled as of
          immediately prior to the Effective Time, and in consideration for such
          cancellation, the holder thereof shall become entitled to receive from
          the  Company an amount of cash equal to the  product of (A) the number
          of vested  shares  subject  to the  Company  Stock  Option and (B) the
          excess of the Merger  Consideration  over the per share exercise price
          of the Company  Stock Option,  less the amount of applicable  foreign,
          federal,  state and local  taxes  required  to be  withheld  from such
          payment. The Company shall pay the amounts payable to each holder of a
          vested  Company  Stock  Option  as  soon  as  reasonably   practicable
          following  the  Effective  Time.  The Company  shall pay  promptly any
          amounts  withheld for  applicable  foreign,  federal,  state and local
          taxes to the  appropriate  Governmental  Authority  on  behalf of such
          holder of such Company Stock Option.

               (ii)  Immediately  prior  to the  Effective  Time,  a  number  of
          unvested  Company Stock  Options held by each holder  thereof equal to
          the lesser of (i) unvested  Company  Stock  Options to purchase  1,000
          shares of Company Common Stock or (ii) the number of unvested  Company
          Stock Options held by such holder, shall accelerate, fully vest and be
          treated  immediately  prior to the  Effective  Time as vested  Company
          Stock  Options  under  Section  2.4(f)(i);  provided that such Company
          Stock Options to be vested shall be the unvested Company Stock Options
          which would have
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          otherwise  vested at the earliest dates  following the Effective Time.
          Immediately  prior to the  Effective  Time,  except as provided in the
          preceding sentence, each outstanding and unvested portion of a Company
          Stock  Option shall be cancelled  immediately  prior to the  Effective
          Time, and in consideration for such  cancellation,  the holder thereof
          shall become entitled to receive at the time such unvested  portion of
          a Company Stock Option would have vested, if such unvested portion had
          not been  cancelled in  accordance  with this Section 2.4 (f)(ii),  an
          amount of cash  equal to the  product  of (A) the  number of  unvested
          shares  subject to the Company  Stock Option that would have vested on
          such date and (B) the  excess  of the  Merger  Consideration  (without
          interest)  over the per  share  exercise  price of the  Company  Stock
          Option,  less the amount of  applicable  foreign,  federal,  state and
          local taxes  required to be withheld from such payment,  provided that
          the right of the holder of the Company  Stock  Option to receive  this
          sum is not  conditioned  on the  Employee's  continued  employment  or
          provision of services after the Effective  Time. The Company shall pay
          the amounts payable to each holder of an unvested Company Stock Option
          as soon as  reasonably  practicable  following  the date or dates  the
          unvested  portions of the Company  Stock option  would have  otherwise
          vested if such unvested  portions had not been cancelled in accordance



          with this  Section  2.4(f)(ii).  The Company  shall pay  promptly  any
          amounts  withheld or due for applicable  foreign,  federal,  state and
          local taxes to the appropriate Governmental Authority on behalf of the
          holder of such Company Stock Option.

               (iii) Each purchase right (a "Purchase  Right") under the Company
          ESPP  outstanding  immediately  prior  to  the  Effective  Time  shall
          accelerate,  fully vest and  automatically  be  exercised  immediately
          prior to the Effective  Time in accordance  with the provisions of the
          Company  ESPP.  Shares of  Company  Common  Stock  issuable  upon such
          acceleration,  vesting and  exercise of each  Purchase  Right shall be
          issued and  outstanding  immediately  prior to the Effective  Time and
          shall therefore be subject to the terms of this Agreement. The Company
          shall use its best efforts to provide  written notice of the Merger to
          holders  of a  Purchase  Right at least  ten  (10)  days  prior to the
          Effective Time.

               (iv)  Prior to the  Effective  Time  the  Company  shall  use its
          reasonable  best  efforts to obtain any  consents  from all holders of
          Company Stock Options and to make any  amendments to the terms of such
          stock  options  or  compensations   plans  or  arrangements  that  are
          necessary  to give  effect to the  transactions  contemplated  by this
          Section 2.4(f).  At the Effective Time the Company shall terminate the
          Company Stock Option Plan and the Company ESPP.

               (v) No interest  shall be paid on any amounts to be paid pursuant
          to this Section 2.4(f).

               (vi)  The  Company  will use  reasonable  best  efforts  so that,
          immediately  following  the  Effective  Time,  none of Merger Sub, the
          Company  or the  Surviving  Corporation  is or  will be  bound  by the
          Company  Stock Option Plan,  the Company  ESPP,  Purchase  Right,  any
          Company  Stock  Option  or any  other  options,  warrants,  rights  or
          agreements  which would  entitle any Person,  other than Parent or its
          Affiliates, to own any capital stock of the Company, Merger Sub or the
          Surviving
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          Corporation  or to receive any payment in respect  thereof,  except as
          otherwise provided herein.

          (g) COMPANY DEBENTURES.

               (i) Prior to the Effective  Time the Company shall use reasonable
          best  efforts  to obtain  consents  from the  holders  of the  Company
          Debentures or otherwise to amend each Company Debenture to provide for
          the  automatic  conversion  immediately  prior to the  Merger  of such
          Company  Debenture  into Company  Common Stock in accordance  with the
          terms of the  Company  Debentures  as of the date  hereof.  Shares  of
          Company  Common Stock  issuable upon such  conversion  shall be deemed
          issued and  outstanding  as of the Effective Time for purposes of this
          Agreement.

               (ii) Any Company Debenture  outstanding  immediately prior to the
          Effective  Time  and  which is not  subject  to  automatic  conversion
          pursuant to Section  2.4(g)(i)  or otherwise as of the Merger shall be
          deemed  assumed by the  Surviving  Corporation  and to  constitute  an
          obligation of the Surviving  Corporation;  provided that, on the terms
          and conditions as were applicable  under such Company  Debenture prior
          to the  Effective  Time,  each  Company  Debenture  shall  cease to be
          convertible  into shares of Company  Common Stock or shares of capital
          stock of the Surviving Corporation,  but shall be convertible into the
          right to  receive  cash in an amount  equal to the  product of (i) the
          number of shares of Company  Common  Stock  into  which  such  Company
          Debenture  would have been  convertible in accordance  with its terms,
          multiplied  by (ii) the  Merger  Consideration  payable  per  share of
          Company Common Stock.

          (h) DISSENTING SHARES.

               (i)  Notwithstanding  any  provision  of  this  Agreement  to the
          contrary,  any shares of Company Common Stock held by a holder who has
          demanded  and  perfected   dissenters'   rights  for  such  shares  in
          accordance with the California Code and who, as of the Effective Time,
          has  not  effectively   withdrawn  or  lost  such  dissenters'  rights
          ("Dissenting Shares") shall not be converted into or represent a right
          to receive the Merger  Consideration  pursuant to Section 2.4(e),  but
          the  holder  thereof  shall  only be  entitled  to such  rights as are
          granted by the California Code.

               (ii)  Notwithstanding  the provisions of subsection (i) above, if
          any holder of shares of Company  Common Stock who demands  purchase of



          such shares under the California  Code shall  effectively  withdraw or
          lose  (through   failure  to  perfect  or  otherwise)   such  holder's
          dissenters' rights, then, as of the later of (A) the Effective Time or
          (B)  the  occurrence  of  such  event,   such  holder's  shares  shall
          automatically  be  converted  into and  represent  only  the  right to
          receive  the Merger  Consideration  as  provided  in  Section  2.4(e),
          without  interest  thereon,  upon  surrender  to  the  Company  of the
          Certificate   representing   such  shares  in  accordance   with  this
          Agreement.

               (iii) The  Company  shall give  Parent  (A) prompt  notice of its
          receipt  of  any  written  demands  for  dissenters'  rights  and  any
          withdrawals of such
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          demands  and (B) the  opportunity  to  participate  in and control all
          negotiations  and proceedings  with respect to demands for dissenters'
          rights under the California  Code. The Company shall not,  except with
          the  prior  written  consent  of Parent  or as may be  required  under
          Applicable  Law,  voluntarily  make any  payment  with  respect to any
          demands for purchase of Company  Common Stock  pursuant to dissenters'
          rights or offer to settle or settle any such demands.

          (i)  Conversion  of Capital  Stock of the Merger Sub. At and as of the
     Effective Time, each share of Common Stock, $.00001 par value per share, of
     Merger Sub shall be converted into one share of Common Stock,  no par value
     per share, of the Surviving Corporation.

     Section 2.5 PROCEDURE FOR PAYMENT.

          (a) PAYING AGENT.  Prior to the Effective Time, Parent shall designate
     a bank or trust company to act as paying agent (the "Paying Agent") for the
     purpose of exchanging Certificates for the Merger Consideration.  Parent or
     Merger Sub shall,  from time to time,  make  available  or cause to be made
     available  to the Paying Agent funds (the  "Payment  Fund") in such amounts
     and at times necessary for the payment of the Merger  Consideration  in the
     manner  provided  herein.  The Paying  Agent shall  invest  portions of the
     Merger  Consideration  as Parent directs (it being  understood that any and
     all interest earned on funds made available to the Paying Agent pursuant to
     this  Agreement  shall be the  property  of,  and shall be turned  over to,
     Parent),  provided,  that such  investments  shall be in  obligations of or
     guaranteed  by the United  States of America or of any agency  thereof  and
     backed by the full  faith and credit of the United  States of  America,  in
     commercial  paper  obligations  rated  A-1  or  P-1 or  better  by  Moody's
     Investors Services, Inc. or Standard & Poor's Corporation, respectively, or
     in deposit  accounts,  certificates of deposit or banker's  acceptances of,
     repurchase  or reverse  repurchase  agreements  with,  or  Eurodollar  time
     deposits  purchased  from,  commercial  banks  with  capital,  surplus  and
     undivided  profits  aggregating  in excess of US$100  million (based on the
     most  recent  financial  statements  of such bank  which are then  publicly
     available).

          (b) LETTER OF  TRANSMITTAL.  Promptly  after the Effective  Time,  the
     Surviving  Corporation  shall  instruct  the  Paying  Agent to mail to each
     holder of  record of one or more  shares of  Company  Common  Stock,  (i) a
     letter of transmittal, which shall specify that delivery shall be effected,
     and risk of loss and title to the Certificates shall pass, only upon proper
     delivery of the Certificates to the Paying Agent, and which shall have such
     other provisions as Parent shall reasonably specify,  and (ii) instructions
     for use in effecting the surrender of the  Certificates in exchange for the
     Merger Consideration.

          (c)  ENTITLEMENT  OF  SHARES.  Upon  surrender  of a  Certificate  for
     cancellation to the Paying Agent, together with such letter of transmittal,
     duly executed and completed in accordance  with the  instructions  thereto,
     and such other documents as may reasonably be required by the Paying Agent,
     the holder of such  Certificate  shall be  entitled  to receive in exchange
     therefor  the  Merger  Consideration  payable  in  respect of the shares of
     Company Common Stock  previously  represented by such  Certificates,  after
     giving effect to any  withholding  tax required by Applicable  Law, and the
     Certificates so

                                       12

     surrendered shall forthwith be cancelled. Until surrendered as contemplated
     by this Section 2.5, each Certificate shall be deemed at any time after the
     Effective   Time  to  represent  only  the  right  to  receive  the  Merger
     Consideration.   No  interest  will  be  paid  or  accrued  on  the  Merger
     Consideration.



          (d) PAYMENTS TO OTHER PERSONS.  If Merger  Consideration is to be paid
     to any Person  other than the  Person in whose  name the  Certificates  for
     shares  surrendered for conversion are registered,  it shall be a condition
     of the  payment  that  such  Certificates  be  properly  endorsed  and  the
     signatures  thereon  properly  guaranteed  and otherwise in proper form for
     transfer and that the Person requesting such payment shall have paid to the
     Paying Agent any transfer or other taxes required by reason of the delivery
     of Merger  Consideration  to a Person other than the  registered  holder of
     such  Certificate,  or shall have  established to the  satisfaction  of the
     Surviving Corporation that such tax has been paid or is not applicable.

          (e)  TERMINATION.  Any portion of the Payment  Fund held by the Paying
     Agent for delivery pursuant to this Section 2.5 and unclaimed at the end of
     six  months  after the  Effective  Time shall be paid or  delivered  to the
     Surviving  Corporation,  upon demand,  and any holders of Certificates  who
     have not  theretofore  complied  with this  Section  2.5 shall,  subject to
     Applicable  Law,  thereafter  look only to the  Surviving  Corporation  for
     payment of the Merger  Consideration in respect of shares of Company Common
     Stock  and  shall  have no  rights  against  Parent  with  respect  to such
     payments.  Notwithstanding  the  foregoing,  none of Parent,  the Surviving
     Corporation  or the Paying Agent shall be liable to any holder of shares of
     Company  Common  Stock for any amount  paid to any  Governmental  Authority
     pursuant to any applicable abandoned property,  escheat or similar law. Any
     amounts  unclaimed  by holders of shares of Company  Common Stock two years
     after the Effective  Time (or such earlier date  immediately  prior to such
     time as such amounts would  otherwise  escheat to or become the property of
     any  Governmental  Authority)  shall, to the extent permitted by Applicable
     Law, become the property of the Surviving Corporation free and clear of any
     claims or interest of any Person previously entitled thereto.

          (f) STOCK TRANSFER BOOKS; NO FURTHER  OWNERSHIP  RIGHTS.  At and after
     the  Effective  Time,  the stock  transfer  books of the  Company  shall be
     closed, and there shall be no further  registrations of transfers of shares
     of Company Common Stock thereafter on the records of the Company.  From and
     after the Effective Time, the holders of Certificates  evidencing ownership
     of the shares of Company  Common Stock issued and  outstanding  immediately
     prior to the Effective  Time shall cease to have any rights with respect to
     such shares of Company  Common  Stock,  except as  otherwise  provided  for
     herein or by Applicable Law. If, after the Effective Time, Certificates are
     presented to the Surviving Corporation,  Parent or the Paying Agent for any
     reason, they shall be cancelled and exchanged for the Merger  Consideration
     as provided in this Section 2.5, subject to Section 2.5(e).

          (g) LOST, STOLEN OR DESTROYED CERTIFICATES.  Notwithstanding  anything
     here to the contrary herein, in the event any Certificates  shall have been
     lost,  stolen or destroyed,  Parent shall pay the Merger  Consideration  in
     exchange for such lost, stolen or
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     destroyed Certificates, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the
     holder  thereof;  provided,  that Parent may,  in its  discretion  and as a
     condition precedent to the payment thereof, require the owner of such lost,
     stolen or destroyed  Certificates to provide an indemnity or deliver a bond
     in such sum as Parent may reasonably  direct as indemnity against any claim
     that may be made against Parent with respect to the Certificates alleged to
     have been lost, stolen or destroyed.

     Section 2.6 SUBSEQUENT  ACTIONS.  If, at any time after the Effective Time,
the Surviving  Corporation shall consider or be advised that any deeds, bills of
sale,  assignments,  assurances  or any other actions or things are necessary or
desirable to vest,  perfect or confirm of record or  otherwise in the  Surviving
Corporation  its right,  title or  interest  in, to or under any of the  rights,
properties  or assets of either  Merger  Sub or the  Company  acquired  or to be
acquired by the Surviving Corporation as a result of, or in connection with, the
Merger or otherwise to carry out this Agreement and the Merger, the officers and
directors of the  Surviving  Corporation  are hereby  authorized  to execute and
deliver,  in the name and on  behalf  of each of Merger  Sub or the  Company  or
otherwise, all such deeds, bills of sale, assignments and assurances and to take
and do,  in the name and on  behalf  of each of  Merger  Sub or the  Company  or
otherwise, all such other actions and things as may be necessary or desirable to
vest,  perfect or confirm any and all right, title and interest in, to and under
such rights,  properties or assets in the Surviving  Corporation or otherwise to
carry out this Agreement and the Merger.

                                   ARTICLE III
                  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY

     The Company hereby  represents and warrants to Parent,  except as set forth
in the Company SEC Reports or the Company's Disclosure Letter, as follows:

     Section 3.1 DUE ORGANIZATION OF COMPANY.  The Company is a corporation duly



organized,  validly  existing  and  in  good  standing  under  the  laws  of its
jurisdiction  of  incorporation  and has the  corporate  power  to  carry on its
business as it is now being  conducted  and to own,  operate or lease all of its
properties and assets. True and complete copies of the Articles of Incorporation
and Bylaws of the Company with all amendments and  restatements  thereto through
the date  hereof  have been  provided to Parent  prior to the date  hereof.  The
Company is duly  qualified as a foreign  corporation  to do business,  and is in
good  standing  (to the extent the  concept of good  standing  exists),  in each
jurisdiction  where the character of its properties owned or held under lease or
the nature of its activities makes such  qualification  necessary,  except where
the failure to be so qualified has not had a Material Adverse Effect.

          Section 3.2 CAPITALIZATION.

          (a) The authorized capital stock of the Company consists of 20,000,000
     shares of Company  Common Stock and 1,000,000  shares of Company  Preferred
     Stock. As of the close of business on April 8 , 2001,  4,876,067  shares of
     Company  Common  Stock were  issued and  outstanding,  no shares of Company
     Preferred  Stock were issued or  outstanding,  and Company Stock Options to
     acquire 487,750 shares
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     of Company Common Stock were outstanding  under the Company Stock Plan. The
     Company has outstanding the Company  Debentures  which are convertible upon
     the  request of the holders at any time prior to December  31,  2003,  into
     shares of Company  Common  Stock at a rate of 900 shares of Company  Common
     Stock per  $10,000  of  principal  amount.  Under  the  Company  ESPP,  all
     outstanding   employee   Purchase  Rights  under  the  Company  ESPP  shall
     automatically  be exercised or cancelled  pursuant to Section  2.4(f)(iii),
     immediately prior to the Effective Time, and shares of Company Common Stock
     shall be  purchased  accordingly.  As of April 8,  2001,  the  Company  had
     accrued  deposits  of not more than  $10,000  for the  purchase  of Company
     Common  Stock  under the  Company  ESPP.  The  maximum  number of shares of
     Company  Common  Stock that may be issued under the Company ESPP is 50,000.
     Section  3.2(a) of the  Company's  Disclosure  Letter  sets forth as of the
     close  of  business  on  April  8,  2001,  the  name of each  holder  of an
     outstanding Company Stock Option or Company Debenture,  and with respect to
     each Company Stock Option held by any such holder,  the exercise  price and
     number of shares of  Company  Common  Stock for which  such  Company  Stock
     Option is  exercisable  and with respect to each Company  Debenture held by
     any such  holder,  the number of shares of Company  Common Stock into which
     such Company  Debenture is convertible  as of April 8, 2001.  Except as set
     forth in this  Section  3.2(a),  the Company has no existing  (i)  options,
     warrants,   calls,  preemptive  rights,   subscriptions  or  other  rights,
     convertible   securities,   agreements  or  commitments  of  any  character
     obligating  the  Company to issue,  transfer  or sell any shares of capital
     stock or other  equity  interest in the Company or  securities  convertible
     into or exchangeable for such shares or equity interests,  (ii) contractual
     obligations of the Company to repurchase,  redeem or otherwise  acquire any
     capital stock of the Company,  or (iii) voting trusts or similar agreements
     to which the  Company is a party with  respect to the voting of the capital
     stock of the Company.  The Company since April 8, 2001,  has not issued any
     shares of Company Common Stock except in connection  with the exercise of a
     Company Stock Option,  conversion of a Company Debenture,  or exercise of a
     Purchase Right.

          (b) All of the issued and  outstanding  shares of Company Common Stock
     are, and all shares of Company Common Stock which may be issued pursuant to
     the exercise of  outstanding  Company  Stock  Options,  the  conversion  of
     outstanding  Company  Debentures  or upon the  exercise of Purchase  Rights
     under  the  Company  ESPP  will be,  when  issued  in  accordance  with the
     respective  terms thereof,  duly  authorized,  validly issued,  fully paid,
     nonassessable  and free of preemptive  rights or similar  rights created by
     statute,  the  Articles  of  Incorporation  or Bylaws of the Company or any
     agreement to which the Company is a party or by which the Company is bound.

          (c) The Company does not own, directly or indirectly,  any interest in
     a corporation,  limited  liability  company,  partnership or other business
     organization,  and is not obligated to make any capital  contribution to or
     other investment in any other Person.

     Section 3.3 DUE  AUTHORIZATION  OF  TRANSACTION;  BINDING  OBLIGATION.  The
Company has full  corporate  power and  authority  to execute  and deliver  this
Agreement and,  subject to obtaining the approval and adoption of this Agreement
and  the  Merger  by the  Company's  shareholders  to  perform  its  obligations
hereunder, and the execution,  delivery and performance of this Agreement by the
Company have been duly authorized
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by all  necessary  corporate  action on the part of the Company  (other than the
approval  and  adoption  of this  Agreement  and  the  Merger  by the  Company's
shareholders).  This  Agreement  has been duly  executed  and  delivered  by the
Company and this  Agreement is the legal,  valid and binding  obligation  of the
Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, subject to
the qualification,  however, that enforcement of the rights and remedies created
hereby   is   subject   to   bankruptcy,    insolvency,   fraudulent   transfer,
reorganization,  moratorium and similar laws of general application  relating to
or affecting  creditors'  rights and to general equity  principles.  Section 3.4
Non-Contravention.  The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by
the Company and the consummation of the transactions  contemplated hereby do not
and will not (a)  contravene  the Articles of  Incorporation  or Bylaws or other
charter or organizational documents of the Company, (b) conflict with or violate
any Applicable Law or Company Permit, or (c) conflict with or result in a breach
of or  constitute  a default  (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or
both would become a default) under, or give to others any rights of termination,
amendment,  acceleration  or  cancellation  of,  or  result  in any  loss of any
benefit,  or the  creation  of any Lien on any of the  property or assets of the
Company pursuant to any Contract, judgment, decree, order or ruling to which the
Company is a party or by which the Company or its assets or  properties is bound
or affected, except for such contraventions,  violations,  conflicts,  breaches,
defaults,  rights  creation,  or  Lien  creation  which  individually  or in the
aggregate,  have not had,  or are not  reasonably  likely  to have,  a  Material
Adverse Effect.

     Section 3.5  GOVERNMENT  APPROVALS,  CONSENTS  AND  FILINGS.  No  approval,
authorization,  consent, order, filing, registration or notification is required
to be  obtained  by the  Company  from,  or made or given by the Company to, any
Governmental  Authority or any other Person in  connection  with the  execution,
delivery and  performance of this Agreement by the Company and the  consummation
of  the   transactions   contemplated   hereby,   except  for  such   approvals,
authorizations,  consents,  orders,  filings,  registrations or notifications of
which the failure to obtain is not reasonably  likely to have a Material Adverse
Effect.

     Section 3.6 LITIGATION.  As of the date hereof,  the Company is not engaged
in, or a party to, or to the  Knowledge of the  Company,  threatened  with,  any
legal action or other proceeding,  at law or in equity,  before any Governmental
Authority.  The Company is not subject to any outstanding judgment,  injunction,
order or decree of any court or  Government  Authority to which the Company is a
party which adversely affects the operations of the Company.

     Section 3.7 BROKERS'  FEES.  Except for fees payable to WR Hambrecht + Co.,
LLC, the Company has no liability or obligation  to pay any fees or  commissions
to any broker, finder or agent with respect to the transactions  contemplated by
this  Agreement for which the Company,  Parent or Merger Sub could become liable
or obligated. A true and correct copy of the Company's engagement letter with WR
Hambrecht + Co., LLC has been provided to Parent.
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     Section 3.8 REPORTS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION.

          (a) The Company has filed all forms,  reports,  proxy  statements  and
     documents  required to be filed with the SEC  pursuant to the  Exchange Act
     since April 8, 1999, including,  without limitation,  Annual Report on Form
     10-KSB for the fiscal  year ended June 30,  2000 and  Quarterly  Reports on
     Form 10-QSB for the  quarters  ended  December  31,  1999,  March 31, 2000,
     September  30, 2000 and December 31, 2000,  respectively  (all such reports
     and amendments thereto,  collectively,  the "Company SEC Reports"), and has
     previously  furnished or made available to Parent true and complete  copies
     of all of the  Company  SEC  Reports  filed  with  the SEC  (including  any
     exhibits  thereto).  As of their respective  dates, the Company SEC Reports
     complied in all material respects with the requirements of the Exchange Act
     or the Securities Act and the rules and  regulations of the SEC promulgated
     thereunder, as the case may be, applicable to such Company SEC reports, and
     none of the Company SEC Reports,  as of their  respective dates (as amended
     through the date hereof), contained any untrue statement of a material fact
     or omitted a material  fact  required to be stated  therein or necessary to
     make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they
     were made, not misleading.

          (b) Each of the balance sheets  (including the related notes) included
     in the Company SEC Reports  fairly  presents the financial  position of the
     Company as of the date thereof,  and the other related financial statements
     (including the related notes)  included  therein fairly present the results
     of  operations  and  the  changes  in cash  flows  of the  Company  for the
     respective  periods  set  forth  therein,   all  in  conformity  with  GAAP
     consistently applied during the periods involved, except as otherwise noted
     therein  and  subject,  in the  case  of the  unaudited  interim  financial
     statements,  to (i) normal  year end  adjustments;  and (ii) the  permitted
     exclusion of all footnotes that would otherwise be required by GAAP.



          (c) The Company does not have any  liabilities  or  obligations of any
     nature (whether accrued,  absolute,  contingent or otherwise) that would be
     required to be reflected on, or reserved against in, a balance sheet of the
     Company or  described  or  referred  to in the notes  thereto,  prepared in
     accordance with GAAP,  except for (i) liabilities or obligations  that were
     so reserved  on, or  reflected  in  (including  the notes to),  the balance
     sheets included in the Company SEC Reports, (ii) liabilities or obligations
     arising in the ordinary course of business  (including trade  indebtedness)
     since  December  31,  2000,  and (iii)  liabilities  or  obligations  to WR
     Hambrecht + Co., LLC, pursuant to the financial  arrangements  described in
     Section 3.7,  expenses and costs of counsel and other advisers  incurred by
     the  Company  in  connection  with the  transactions  contemplated  by this
     Agreement,  and (iv)  liabilities or obligations  which do not constitute a
     Material Adverse Effect.

     Section 3.9 ABSENCE OF CERTAIN CHANGES OR EVENTS.  Since December 31, 2000,
the Company has not:

          (a) taken any of the actions prohibited in Section 5.1 hereof;
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          (b) incurred any material liability,  except in the ordinary course of
     its business, consistent with past practices;

          (c) made any change in  accounting  principles  except  insofar as may
     have been required by a change in GAAP or Applicable Law; or

          (d)  suffered  or  incurred  any  Damages  (whether  or not covered by
     insurance)  with respect to any of the tangible assets of the Company which
     have had a Material Adverse Effect.

     Section 3.10 TAXES.

          (a) The Company has made  available to Parent all Tax Returns filed by
     the Company for all periods ending on or after June 30, 1997 and before the
     date of this Agreement,  and supporting information,  claims for refunds of
     Taxes and any amendments, supplements, or other information supplied to the
     taxing  authorities  for all such  periods.  The  Company has filed all Tax
     Returns  required  by law to be  filed  by it  prior  to the  date  of this
     Agreement,  and such Tax  Returns  are true,  complete  and  correct in all
     material  respects.  The Company  has paid or made  adequate  provision  in
     accordance  with GAAP in the financial  statements  included in the Company
     SEC  Reports for the payment of all  material  Taxes which have  accrued or
     have  become  payable.  All Taxes that the  Company  has been  required  to
     withhold  or to  collect  have  been duly  withheld  or  collected  and all
     withholdings and collections  either have been duly and timely paid over to
     the appropriate Governmental Authorities or are, together with the payments
     due or to  become  due  in  connection  therewith,  duly  reflected  on the
     financial  statements  of the Company.  There are no audits,  examinations,
     administrative  proceedings or court proceedings,  pending or proposed with
     regard to any Taxes or Tax Returns  filed by the  Company.  The Company has
     not given or been requested to give waivers or extensions of any statute of
     limitations  relating  to the filing of Tax  Returns or the  assessment  of
     Taxes for which the Company may have any undisclosed liability,  except for
     any waiver or extension which has expired or any extensions  resulting from
     the  filing of a Tax Return  after its  original  due date in the  ordinary
     course of business.  To the Knowledge of the Company no claim has ever been
     made by any Governmental Authority in a jurisdiction where the Company does
     not file Tax  Returns  that it is or may be  subject  to  taxation  by that
     jurisdiction.  The Tax Returns of the Company  have not been audited by the
     IRS (or the appropriate  statute of limitations has expired) for any fiscal
     years through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2000.

          (b) The Company (i) is not a party to any agreement  providing for the
     allocation,  payment or sharing of Taxes  between the  Company,  on the one
     hand,  and any  Third  Party,  on the  other  hand;  (ii)  does not have an
     application  pending with respect to any Tax  requesting  permission  for a
     change  in  accounting  method;  (iii)  has  not  filed  a  consent  to the
     application  of Code  Section  341(f)  or any  similar  state or local  tax
     elections;  (iv) has no liability  for Taxes for any Person (other than the
     Company)  under  Treasury  Regulation  Section  1.1502-6  (or  any  similar
     provision  of state,  local or  foreign  income  tax law),  as  transferee,
     successor,  by contract or otherwise;  and (v) has  maintained  its records
     with respect to Taxes in a commercially reasonable manner.
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          (c) Section 3.10 of the Company's  Disclosure Letter lists (i) all Tax
     Returns  required  to be  filed  within  45  days  after  the  date of this
     Agreement,  and (ii) all states where the Company files income or franchise



     Tax Returns.

     Section 3.11 EMPLOYEE MATTERS.

          (a) COMPANY EMPLOYEE PLANS.

               (i) Section 3.11(a) of the Company's Disclosure Letter sets forth
          a true and  complete  list of each Company  Employee  Plan. A true and
          correct copy of each Company Employee Plan as currently in effect and,
          if   applicable,   the  most  recent  annual   report,   summary  plan
          description,  trust agreement and any  determination  letter issued by
          the IRS for each Company  Employee Plan have been delivered to or will
          be made available for review by Parent.

               (ii) None of the  Company  Employee  Plans  promises  or provides
          retiree medical or other retiree welfare  benefits to any Person other
          than coverage mandated by applicable law or benefits, the full cost of
          which is borne by the retiree.

               (iii) The Company  has  complied in all  material  respects  with
          ERISA, the Code and all laws and regulations applicable to the Company
          Employee Plans, and each Company Employee Plan has been maintained and
          administered in material compliance with its terms.

               (iv) Each Company Employee Plan intended to qualify under Section
          401(a)  of the  Code  has  been  determined  by the IRS to so  qualify
          pursuant to a favorable  determination  letter after  January 1, 1989,
          and each trust maintained  pursuant thereto has been determined by the
          IRS to be exempt from taxation under Section 501 of the Code.  Nothing
          has occurred to the Knowledge of the Company  which may  reasonably be
          expected to impair such determination of any Company Employee Plan and
          its related trust.

               (v) No  Company  Plan is  covered by Title IV of ERISA or Section
          412 of the Code.  No fact or event exists which could give rise to any
          liability under Title IV of ERISA or Section 412 of the Code.

               (vi) With respect to each Company Employee Plan:

                    (1) no prohibited transactions (as defined in Section 406 or
               407 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code) have occurred for which
               a statutory,  administrative or class exemption is not available;
               and

                    (2) no action or  claims  (other  than  routine  claims  for
               benefits  made in the ordinary  course of Company  Employee  Plan
               administration  for which Company  Employee  Plan  administrative
               review procedures have not been exhausted) are pending or, to the
               Knowledge of the Company,  threatened or imminent against or with
               respect to any Company Employee Plan, any employer who is
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               participating  (or who has  participated) in any Company Employee
               Plan or any fiduciary (as defined in Section 3(21) of ERISA),  of
               the Company Employee Plan.

               (vii)  All  of  the  Company   Employee   Plans,  to  the  extent
          applicable,  are in  compliance  in all  material  respects  with  the
          continuation of group health coverage provisions  continued in Section
          4980B of the Code and Sections 601 through 608 of ERISA ("COBRA"). The
          Company  does not  maintain or  contribute  to any plan that  provides
          health  benefits to an employee  after the  employee's  termination of
          employment or retirement except as required under COBRA.

               (viii) All  reports,  forms and other  documents  required  to be
          filed with any Government Authority or furnished to employees,  former
          employees or  beneficiaries  with respect to any Company Employee Plan
          (including  summary plan  descriptions,  Forms 5500 and summary annual
          reports) have been timely filed and finished and are accurate.

               (ix) The Company has made all contributions due and payable as of
          or prior to the date  hereof  to the  Company  Employee  Plans for all
          periods ending prior to the date hereof.

               (x) All insurance  premiums due and payable as of or prior to the
          date hereof for insurance  coverages under the Company  Employee Plans
          have  been  paid  in  full,  subject  only  to  normal   retrospective
          adjustments  in the  ordinary  course,  with  regard  to  the  Company
          Employee Plans for plan years ending on or before the Closing Date.

               (xi) All expenses and liabilities  relating to all of the Company
          Employee  Plans have been,  and will on the Closing Date be, fully and



          properly  accrued on the Company's  books and records and disclosed in
          accordance with GAAP and in the financial statements of the respective
          Company Employee Plans.

               (xii) Each of the Company  Employee Plans provides that it may be
          amended or terminated at any time and,  except for benefits  protected
          under  Section  411(d) of the Code,  all benefits  payable to current,
          terminated  employees or any  beneficiary may be amended or terminated
          by Parent or the Company at any time without liability.

               (xiii) The Company does not have  liability  nor is it threatened
          with any liability  (whether  joint or several) (1) for any excise tax
          imposed by Sections 4971, 4975, 4976, 4977 or 4979 of the Code, or (2)
          to a fine under Section 502 of ERISA.

               (xiv) There are no  negotiations,  demands or proposals which are
          pending or have been made which concern  matters now covered,  or that
          would be covered,  by the type of  agreement  required to be listed in
          Section 3.11(a) of the Company's Disclosure Letter.
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          (b)  Employees.  The  employment of each Employee is terminable by the
     Company  at will.  The  Company  is not a party to,  nor is it bound by any
     employment  agreement.  Section 3.11(b) of the Company's  Disclosure Letter
     sets forth the aggregate  accrued vacation pay of the Employees as of March
     31, 2001.

     Section 3.12 MATERIAL CONTRACTS.

          (a) Section 3.12(a) of the Company's Disclosure Letter includes a list
     of the following  agreements,  Contracts or other instruments in effect and
     binding upon the Company (including all amendments thereto)  (collectively,
     the "Material Contracts"):  (i) agreements,  Contracts or other instruments
     which  have  been  filed  by the  Company  with  the  SEC  pursuant  to the
     requirements of the Exchange Act as "material contracts";  (ii) agreements,
     Contracts  or  other  instruments  which  are  required  to be filed by the
     Company  with the SEC pursuant to the  requirements  of the Exchange Act as
     "material  contracts" and have not been filed;  (iii) each Company Employee
     Plan; (iv) any agreement or indenture relating to the borrowing of money in
     excess of $150,000 in principal amount or mortgaging, pledging or otherwise
     placing  a Lien  (other  than a  Permitted  Lien)  on  any  portion  of the
     Company's assets to secure an obligation in excess of $150,000 in principal
     amount;  (v) guaranty of any  obligation  for  borrowed  money in excess of
     $150,000 in principal amount; (vi) all of the leases,  subleases,  licenses
     and other material  agreements  relating to or constituting  real property;
     (vii)  any  lease or  agreement  under  which it is  lessee  of or holds or
     operates  any  personal  property  owned by any  other  party  with  annual
     payments  of at  least  $150,000;  (viii)  contract  or  group  of  related
     contracts  with the same  party  for the  supply  of wine to any  Person or
     providing for  deliveries  extending  beyond  December 31, 2001 with annual
     payments  in excess of  $150,000;  (ix) any  contract  or group of  related
     contracts with the same party for the purchase of goods  (including  grapes
     or  bulk  wine),  inventories,   supplies  or  services,  under  which  the
     undelivered balance of such goods, inventories,  supplies or services has a
     purchase price in excess of $150,000;  (x) any contract or group of related
     contracts  with the same party for the sale of  products  or services in an
     amount in excess of $150,000;  (xi)  manufacturer's  representative,  sales
     agency and  distribution  contracts and agreements  that have a term of one
     year or more and are not  terminable by the Company on notice of six months
     or less without  penalty;  (xii)  contracts and  agreements  prohibiting or
     materially  restricting  the  ability  of the  Company  to  compete  in any
     geographic  area with any Person,  other than (A)  distribution  (including
     independent sales representative) contracts and agreements that have a term
     of less than one year or are  terminable  by the  Company  on notice of six
     months or less without  penalty,  and, in each case, which are not material
     to the  Company  and (B)  supplier  and  customer  agreements  relating  to
     non-disclosure of confidential information of the other party which are not
     material to the Company;  (xiii) any other contract or commitment involving
     the payment by or to the  Company of  $150,000 or more  (whether in cash or
     other  assets) in any twelve month period or more (whether in cash or other
     assets) than $150,000 in the aggregate over the life of the contract; (xiv)
     stockholder,  voting trust or similar contracts and agreements  relating to
     the voting of shares or other equity or debt interests of the Company known
     to the Company;  or (xv) joint venture agreements,  partnership  agreements
     and other similar  contracts and agreements  involving a sharing of profits
     and expenses.  The Company has made available to Parent,  prior to the date
     hereof, true,
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     correct and complete copies in all material  respects of each such Material
     Contract. To the Knowledge of the Company, the representations made in this
     Section  3.12(a)  would  also be true  and  correct  if the  references  to
     $150,000  in this  Section  3.12(a)  were  reduced to  $50,000,  so long as
     Material  Contracts  for the  purchase  or sale of grapes  and wine are not
     included.

          (b) (i) The Company has not breached, is not in default under, and has
     not received written notice of any breach of or default under (or, would be
     in default, breach or violation with notice or lapse of time, or both), any
     Material Contract,  (ii) to the Knowledge of the Company, no other party to
     any of the Material  Contracts  has breached or is in default of any of its
     obligations thereunder, and (iii) each of the Material Contracts is in full
     force  and  effect,  and  will  continue  to be in full  force  and  effect
     following  consummation of the transactions  contemplated hereby, except in
     any such case for  breaches,  defaults or failures that in the aggregate do
     not have a Material Adverse Effect.

     Section 3.13 REGULATORY COMPLIANCE.

          (a) The Company is in compliance with all Applicable Laws,  except for
     instances of non-compliance  that individually or in the aggregate have not
     had a Material  Adverse  Effect.  The  Company  has not  received  from any
     Governmental  Authority  any  written  notice  alleging  any  violation  of
     Applicable Laws, except for instances of  non-compliance  that individually
     or in the aggregate have not had a Material Adverse Effect, or claiming any
     liability of the Company as a result of any such alleged violation which is
     reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect.

          (b) The Company holds all permits,  licenses,  variances,  exemptions,
     consents, certificates,  orders and approvals from Governmental Authorities
     which are  necessary  to the  operation  of the  Company as it is now being
     conducted  (collectively,   the  "Company  Permits").  The  Company  is  in
     compliance  with the terms of the Company  Permits,  except for failures to
     comply which have not had a Material  Adverse  Effect.  The Company has not
     received  written  notice that any Company  Permit  will be  terminated  or
     modified or cannot be renewed in the ordinary  course of  business,  and to
     the  Knowledge  of the Company  there is no  reasonable  basis for any such
     termination,  modification or nonrenewal.  Section 3.13(b) of the Company's
     Disclosure  Letter sets forth a complete and accurate listing of all of the
     Company  Permits  issued to,  possessed  by, or  otherwise  in effect  with
     respect to the Company.

          (c) The subject matters of Sections 3.5, 3.6, 3.8, 3.10,  3.11,  3.15,
     3.16,  3.18, 3.20 and 3.22 are excluded from the provisions of this Section
     3.13.

     Section 3.14 REAL PROPERTY.

          (a) Section 3.14(a) of the Company's  Disclosure  Letter lists (i) all
     leases  entered  into by the  Company  for any real  property  to which the
     Company  is a  party  as a  lessee  as  of  the  date  hereof  (the  "Lease
     Agreements"),  setting forth in the case of any such lease, the location of
     such real property and (ii) all real properties to which the
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     Company owns fee simple title (the "Owned Real  Property"),  setting  forth
     the legal description of each such Owned Real Property. To the knowledge of
     the Company,  (iii) the Company has good and marketable title to all of its
     Owned Real Property and valid  leasehold  interests of record in and to all
     real property that is the subject of the Lease Agreements (the "Leased Real
     Property"),  and (iv)  neither the Owned Real  Property nor the Leased Real
     Property  is subject to any rights of any other  Person or entity  that are
     superior to such  interests of the Company,  other than easements of record
     and the  matters set forth in Section  3.14(a)  and Section  3.14(b) of the
     Company's  Disclosure  Letter  provided that these items in the  Disclosure
     Letter do not  materially  interfere  with the present use or occupation of
     the Owned Real Property or Leased Real Property.

          (b) Each of the  Lease  Agreements  is in full  force and  effect  and
     constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the Company. To the Knowledge
     of the  Company,  no default of the  landlord or the  Company has  occurred
     under any Lease Agreement nor has any event occurred which, with the giving
     of notice or the passage of time or both, would constitute a default of the
     landlord  or the Company  thereunder.  The  Company  has not  received  any
     written  notice  alleging  that the  Company is in default  under any Lease
     Agreement.

          (c) The  Company  has  received  no written  notice that any entity or
     governmental  authority  considers the  operation,  use or ownership of the
     Owned Real  Property  or the Leased  Real  Property  to have  violated  any
     zoning,  land  use or  similar  laws,  ordinances,  rules,  regulations  or



     administrative    interpretations   applicable   thereto,   or   that   any
     investigation has been commenced regarding such possible violation.  To the
     Knowledge of the Company,  and except as noted in the Company's  Disclosure
     Letter,  the present use and  operation of the Owned Real  Property and the
     Leased Real Property is in compliance  with all existing  zoning,  land use
     and  similar  laws,  ordinances,   rules,   regulations  or  administrative
     interpretations applicable thereto.

          (d) No condemnation or eminent domain  proceeding  against any part of
     the Owned Real  Property  or Leased  Real  Property  is pending  or, to the
     Knowledge of the Company, threatened.

          (e) All  operating  facilities  located on the Owned Real Property and
     the Leased Real  Property are supplied with  utilities and other  services,
     assuming the operation of such utilities, in such amounts as are reasonably
     necessary  for the current  operation of such  facilities,  including  gas,
     electricity,   water,  waste  water,  irrigation,   drainage,  and  similar
     reasonably required services.

     Section 3.15 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY.

          (a) Attached as Section 3.15(a) of the Company's  Disclosure Letter is
     a list of each  material  Proprietary  Asset  owned by or  licensed  to the
     Company which is necessary or required for the operation of the business of
     the  Company  as  currently  conducted,  together  with  a  designation  of
     ownership.  The  Company  is,  or  upon  consummation  of the  transactions
     contemplated hereby will be, the owner of all right,
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     title and interest in and to each such  Proprietary  Asset or has the right
     to use each such  Proprietary  Asset as required to conduct its business as
     now operated.  No  registration  of a  Proprietary  Asset listed on Section
     3.15(a) of the Company's  Disclosure Letter has expired,  been cancelled or
     abandoned.  None of the past or present Employees,  officers,  directors or
     shareholders  of  the  Company  have  any  ownership  rights  in any of the
     Proprietary Assets.

          (b)  All  registered  trademarks  listed  in  Section  3.15(a)  of the
     Company's  Disclosure  Letter  are  registered,  solely  in the name of the
     Company, (i) on the Principal or Supplemental Register of the United States
     Patent  and  Trademark  Office,  and  (ii)  with  the  appropriate  foreign
     authorities  necessary  for  protection  of the  trademarks  in all foreign
     markets where the Company's  trademarks are used, and each  registration is
     valid, in full force and effect, and enforceable.

          (c) To the  Knowledge of the Company,  the Company is not  infringing,
     and  has  not at any  time  infringed  or  received  any  notice  or  other
     communication (in writing or otherwise) of any actual, alleged, possible or
     potential infringement of, any Proprietary Asset owned or used by any other
     Person. To the Knowledge of the Company,  no other Person is infringing any
     Proprietary Asset owned or used by the Company.

          (d) The Company has not licensed or  sublicensed  any party to use any
     of the  Proprietary  Assets  identified in Section 3.15(a) of the Company's
     Disclosure Letter.

          (e) There are no  judgments,  decrees  or orders  pending  against  or
     affecting any Proprietary Asset owned or used by the Company.

     Section 3.16 ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS.

          (a) The  operations  of the Company have been and are in compliance in
     all material  respects with all applicable  Environmental  Laws,  including
     without  limitation  the  possession  of and  compliance  with all permits,
     licenses,   authorizations   and  approvals   required   under   applicable
     Environmental  Laws.  There are, and have been, no past or present  events,
     conditions,  circumstances,  activities,  practices,  incidents  or actions
     which could  reasonably be expected to interfere with or prevent  continued
     compliance with any applicable Environmental Law in any material respect.

          (b) The Company has not received any written complaint,  claim, notice
     or request for  information  concerning  any  violation,  or any  liability
     under, any applicable Environmental Laws during the past seven years.

          (c) There  are no writs,  injunctions,  decrees,  orders or  judgments
     outstanding,  relating to  compliance  by the Company with, or liability of
     the Company under, any applicable Environmental Laws.

          (d)  There  are  no   environmental   liens,   declarations   or  deed
     restrictions affecting the properties of the Company.
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          (e) No  Hazardous  Substances  have been stored or  otherwise  held or
     released on, under or about any  properties  owned by,  leased by or leased
     to, or operated by the Company  during the  Company's  period of ownership,
     lease or operation of the property, and to the Knowledge of the Company, no
     Hazardous  Substances  had been stored or  otherwise  held or released  on,
     under or about any properties owned by, leased by or leased to, or operated
     by the  Company  prior  to the  Company's  period  of  ownership,  lease or
     operation of the property.

          (f) No underground  storage tanks currently exist or, to the Knowledge
     of the Company,  have existed on any properties  currently owned by, leased
     by or leased to, or operated by the Company.  No underground  storage tanks
     existed on any properties  previously  owned by, leased by or leased to, or
     operated by the Company during the Company's period of ownership, lease, or
     operation  of the  property,  and  to the  Knowledge  of  the  Company,  no
     underground  storage tanks existed on any properties  previously  owned by,
     leased by or leased to, or operated by the Company  prior to the  Company's
     period of ownership, lease, or operation of the property.

          (g) The  Company  (i) has not  disposed  of or  buried  any  Hazardous
     Substances  located in or on any properties  currently or previously  owned
     by, leased by or to, or operated by the Company, nor have any been released
     except in full compliance with all applicable  Environmental Laws; (ii) has
     not received any written notice from any Person or entity alleging that the
     Company has disposed of any Hazardous Substance on any properties currently
     or  previously  owned by,  leased by or to, or operated by the Company;  or
     (iii) has not disposed of any Hazardous  Substance on third-party  sites in
     violation  of any  Environmental  Law or  incurred  any  liability  for the
     unlawful  generation,   treatment,   storage  or  disposal,   of  Hazardous
     Substances.

     Section 3.17 TITLE TO AND CONDITION OF ASSETS.

          (a) Section 3.17 of the Company's  Disclosure  Letter lists all leases
     entered into by the Company for any personal  property to which the Company
     is a party as a lessee ("Leased Personal Property").

          (b) The assets as  reflected  in the  balance  sheet  included  in the
     Company's  Quarterly  Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarterly  period ended
     December 31, 2000, and the Leased Personal  Property  constitute all of the
     assets held for use or used  primarily in  connection  with the business of
     the  Company and are  adequate  to carry on the  business of the Company as
     currently  conducted  other than those assets that have been disposed of in
     the ordinary course of business  consistent with past practice.  All of the
     tangible  personal  property  used in the  operation of the business of the
     Company is in good operating condition and repair, except for ordinary wear
     and tear.  Except for any Leased Personal  Property,  the Company has legal
     title to each of its tangible personal  property assets,  free and clear of
     any Lien, other than Permitted Liens.

          (c) Each  lease for  Leased  Personal  Property  is in full  force and
     effect and  constitutes  a valid and  binding  obligation  of the  Company,
     except to the extent  failure to constitute a valid and binding  obligation
     would not reasonably be expected to
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     have a Material  Adverse  Effect.  No default of the Company  has  occurred
     under any such leases nor has any event occurred which,  with the giving of
     notice or the passage of time or both,  would  constitute  a default of the
     Company  thereunder,  except to the extent that any such default  would not
     reasonably be expected to have a Material  Adverse  Effect.  As of the date
     hereof, there is no pending or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened
     action that would  interfere with the quiet enjoyment of such leaseholds by
     the Company.

     Section 3.18 PRODUCT RECALL. The Company has not, for the past three years,
recalled any products made,  bottled,  distributed or sold by the Company and it
is not now nor has it ever been under any  obligation  to do so, and there is no
reasonable basis known to the Company for any such recall.

     Section  3.19 GRAPE VINES.  The grape vines on the vineyard  portion of the
Owned Real Property and Leased Real Property are in good condition,  and free in
all material respects of disease, infestation or other defects.

     Section 3.20 LABOR MATTERS.

          (a) The Company is not a party to or otherwise bound by any collective
     bargaining  agreement,  contract or other agreement or understanding with a
     labor union or labor  organization  and has not received  written notice of



     any proposed union  certification  or recognition  election with respect to
     the  Company,  nor is the Company the subject of any  proceeding  asserting
     that Company has  committed an unfair labor  practice  pending,  or, to the
     Knowledge of the Company,  threatened  before the National Labor  Relations
     Board or any court of law or is seeking  to compel  the  Company to bargain
     with any labor union or labor  organization nor is there pending or, to the
     Knowledge of the Company,  threatened, nor has there been for the past five
     years,  any labor strike,  dispute,  walkout,  work stoppage,  slow-down or
     lockout involving the Company.

          (b) The Company is in compliance  with all Applicable  Laws respecting
     employment and employment practices, terms and conditions of employment and
     wages and hours,  except for instances of non-compliance  that individually
     or in the aggregate have not had a Material  Adverse  Effect.  There are no
     charges, investigations, administrative proceedings or formal complaints of
     discrimination  (including  discrimination  based  upon sex,  age,  marital
     status,  race,  color,   religion,   national  origin,  sexual  preference,
     disability, handicap or veteran status) pending or, to the Knowledge of the
     Company,  threatened before the Equal Employment  Opportunity Commission or
     any federal, state or local agency or court against the Company.

     Section  3.21 OPINION OF  FINANCIAL  ADVISOR.  The Company has received the
opinion of WR Hambrecht + Co.,  LLC, to the effect that, as of the date thereof,
the Merger Consideration is fair to the holders of the Company Common Stock from
a financial point of view.
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     Section 3.22 TAKEOVER  STATUTES.  No "fair price,"  "moratorium,"  "control
share  acquisition" or other similar  antitakeover  statute is applicable to the
Merger, except for such statutes or regulations as to which all necessary action
has  been  taken by the  Company  and its  board  of  directors  to  permit  the
consummation of the Merger in accordance with the terms hereof.

     Section 3.23  INSURANCE.  Section 3.23 of the Company's  Disclosure  Letter
sets forth the insurance policies maintained by the Company and their respective
coverage and renewal dates. All of such insurance policies are in full force and
effect  and  the  Company  is  not  in  material  default  with  respect  to its
obligations under any of such insurance  policies.  No notice of cancellation or
termination  or  rejection  of any claim has been  received by the Company  with
respect to any such policy in the last year. The Company has been covered during
the past five years by insurance in scope and amount  customary  and  reasonable
for the businesses in which it has been engaged during such period,  and, to the
Knowledge of the Company,  no  contractor,  lessee or licensee  which  performed
services  and/or  engaged in the production of wine on behalf of the Company was
not or are not covered by insurance in scope and amount customary and reasonable
for the business in which they have engaged during such period.

     Section  3.24  DISTRIBUTOR   RELATIONS.   Section  3.24  of  the  Company's
Disclosure Letter sets forth the Company's five largest  customers  (measured by
revenues) as of February 28, 2001,  and the revenues from each such customer and
from all  customers  (in the  aggregate)  for the eight month period then ended.
None of such five largest  customers of the Company has advised the Company that
it is (x) terminating or considering terminating the handling of its business by
the Company  (prior to or after the Effective  Time) as a whole or in respect of
any particular  product,  or (y) planning to reduce, in any material amount, its
future spending with the Company (prior to or after the Effective Time).

     Section 3.25  SUPPLIERS.  Section 3.25 of the Company's  Disclosure  Letter
sets forth the  Company's  five  largest  suppliers  (measured by expense) as of
February 28, 2001,  and the expense from each such  supplier for the eight month
period then ended. None of such suppliers of the Company has advised the Company
that it is (x)  terminating  or  considering  terminating  its business with the
Company  (prior to or after the Effective  Time) as a whole or in respect of any
particular  product,  or (y)  planning to reduce,  in any material  amount,  its
future sales to the Company (prior to or after the Effective Time).

     Section 3.26 RELATED PARTY  TRANSACTIONS.  No executive officer or director
of the Company or, to the  Knowledge  of the  Company,  any  individual  in such
officer's or director's immediate family is a party to any agreement,  contract,
commitment  or  transaction  with the Company or has any interest in any real or
personal property used by the Company.
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     Section 3.27 NO OTHER REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES

          (a) Except for the  representations  and warranties  contained in this
     Article III and the Company's  Disclosure  Letter,  neither the Company nor
     any other Person makes any express or implied representation or warranty on
     behalf of the  Company,  and the Company  hereby  disclaims  any such other



     representation or warranty.

          (b) In particular,  without limiting the foregoing disclaimer,  except
     as stated in this  Article  III and the  Company's  Disclosure  Letter,  no
     Person makes or has made any representation or warranty to Parent or Merger
     Sub with respect to (i) any financial  projection  or forecast  relating to
     the  Company  or its  business  or (ii)  any  oral or  written  information
     presented  to Parent or  Merger  Sub  during  any  management  presentation
     including  any question and answer  session  thereto or any oral or written
     information  provided  to  Parent or  Merger  Sub in the  course of its due
     diligence  investigation of Parent or its business, the negotiation of this
     Agreement or in the course of the transaction  contemplated hereby. Further
     to the extent  that the  Company  has  provided or may provide to Parent or
     Merger Sub information  from any inspection,  engineering or  environmental
     report,  the Company makes no representations or warranties with respect to
     the accuracy,  completeness  or  methodology  of  preparation  or otherwise
     concerning  such  reports.  With  respect  to any  projection  or  forecast
     delivered  by or on behalf of the Company to Parent or Merger Sub,  each of
     Parent  and  Merger  Sub  acknowledges  that (i)  there  are  uncertainties
     inherent in attempting to make such  projection and  forecasts,  (ii) it is
     familiar with such  uncertainties,  (iii) it is taking full  responsibility
     for making its own  evaluation  of the  adequacy  and  accuracy of all such
     projections  and  forecasts  so  furnished  to it and (iv) it shall have no
     claim against any Person with respect thereto other than a claim for fraud,
     bad faith or intentional misrepresentation.

                                   ARTICLE IV
             REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PARENT AND MERGER SUB

     Parent and Merger Sub,  jointly each and  severally,  hereby  represent and
warrant to the  Company,  except as set forth in the Parent's SEC Reports or the
Parent's Disclosure Letter:

     Section  4.1 DUE  INCORPORATION.  Each of the  Parent  and  Merger Sub is a
corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws
of its jurisdiction of incorporation and has the corporate power to carry on its
business as it is now being  conducted  and to own,  operate or lease all of its
properties  and  assets.   True  and  complete  copies  of  the  Certificate  of
Incorporation or Articles of  Incorporation  and Bylaws of the Parent and Merger
Sub with all amendments and  restatements  thereto  through the date hereof have
been provided to the Company prior to the date hereof.

     Section 4.2 DUE AUTHORIZATION OF TRANSACTION;  BINDING OBLIGATION.  Each of
Parent and Merger Sub has full  corporate  power and  authority  to execute  and
deliver  this  Agreement  and to  perform  its  obligations  hereunder,  and the
execution,  delivery and  performance of this Agreement by Parent and Merger Sub
have been duly authorized by
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all  necessary  corporate  action on the part of Parent  and  Merger  Sub;  this
Agreement  has been duly  executed and delivered by Parent and Merger Sub and is
the valid and  binding  obligation  of Parent  and  Merger  Sub  enforceable  in
accordance  with  its  terms,  subject  to  the  qualification,   however,  that
enforcement of the rights and remedies  created hereby is subject to bankruptcy,
insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganization,  moratorium and similar laws of
general  application  relating to or affecting  creditors' rights and to general
equity principles.  No further approval by the board of directors,  shareholders
or other security holders of Parent or Merger Sub is required for the execution,
delivery and  performance of this  Agreement by Parent or Merger Sub,  including
without limitation the consummation of the Merger.

     Section 4.3 NON-CONTRAVENTION.  The execution,  delivery and performance of
this Agreement by Parent and Merger Sub and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated  hereby  do not and  will not (a)  contravene  the  Certificate  of
Incorporation or Bylaws or other charter or  organizational  documents of Parent
or Merger Sub, (b) conflict with or violate any Applicable Law, and (c) conflict
with or result in a breach of or  constitute  a default  (or an event which with
notice or lapse of time or both would become a default) under, or give to others
any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, or result
in any loss of any material  benefit,  or the creation of any Lien on any of the
property  or assets of the Parent and each of its  subsidiaries  pursuant to any
Contract,  judgment,  decree,  order or ruling to which  Parent  and each of its
subsidiaries  is a party or by which it or any of its  assets or  properties  is
bound or  affected,  except  for  such  contraventions,  violations,  conflicts,
breaches,  defaults,  rights creation or Lien creation which  individually or in
the  aggregate  have  not  had,  or is not  reasonably  likely  to have a Parent
Material Adverse Effect.

     Section 4.4  GOVERNMENT  APPROVALS,  CONSENTS,  AND  FILINGS.  No approval,
authorization,  consent, order, filing, registration or notification is required
to be obtained by Parent or any of its  subsidiaries  from,  or made or given by



Parent or any of its subsidiaries to, any Governmental Authority or other Person
in connection with the execution,  delivery and performance of this Agreement by
Parent  or any of its  subsidiaries  and the  consummation  of the  transactions
contemplated hereby, except for such approvals, authorizations, orders, filings,
registrations or  notifications of which the failure to obtain,  individually or
in the aggregate,  is not reasonably  likely to have a Parent  Material  Adverse
Effect.

     Section 4.5  LITIGATION.  As of the date hereof,  Parent and Merger Sub are
not engaged in, or a party to, or  threatened  with,  any legal  action or other
proceeding  before  any  Governmental   Authority,   which  seeks  to  restrain,
materially modify or invalidate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

     Section  4.6  FINANCING.  Parent  and  Merger  Sub will  have,  as and when
required,  the funds  available as is necessary to consummate  the  transactions
contemplated hereby in accordance with the terms hereof.

     Section 4.7 Finder's Fees;  Brokers.  Neither Parent nor Merger Sub has any
liability or obligation to pay any fees or commissions to any broker,  finder or
agent with
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respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement for which the Company
could become liable or obligated.

                                    ARTICLE V
                     CONDUCT OF BUSINESS PENDING THE MERGER

     Section 5.1 CONDUCT OF  BUSINESS  OF THE  COMPANY  PENDING THE MERGER.  The
Company agrees that except as expressly  contemplated by this  Agreement,  or as
contemplated by the Company's Disclosure Letter, during the period from the date
of this  Agreement and continuing  until the earlier of the  termination of this
Agreement or the Effective Time:

          (a)  The  business  of the  Company  shall  be  conducted  only in the
     ordinary and usual course of business and consistent with past practices.

          (b) The Company  shall not without the prior  consent of Parent (which
     consent  shall  not be  unreasonably  withheld  or  delayed)  (i) amend its
     Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws;  or (ii) split,  combine or reclassify
     any shares of its outstanding capital stock,  declare, set aside or pay any
     dividend  or other  distribution  payable  in cash,  stock or  property  in
     respect of its capital stock, or directly or indirectly redeem, purchase or
     otherwise acquire any shares of its capital stock or other securities.

          (c) The Company  shall not without the prior  consent of Parent (which
     consent  shall not be  unreasonably  withheld or delayed) (i) authorize for
     issuance,  issue, sell, pledge,  dispose of, encumber,  deliver or agree or
     commit to issue,  sell,  pledge,  or deliver any  additional  shares of, or
     rights of any kind to acquire any shares of, its capital stock of any class
     (whether   through  the   issuance   or  granting  of  options,   warrants,
     commitments,  subscriptions,  rights to purchase or  otherwise)  other than
     shares of Company  Common Stock issued to holders of Company  Stock Options
     or Company Debentures or issued pursuant to the Company ESPP; (ii) acquire,
     dispose of,  transfer,  lease,  license,  mortgage,  pledge or encumber any
     fixed or other  assets  other than in the  ordinary  course of business and
     consistent with past practices;  (iii) incur, assume or prepay any material
     indebtedness,  liability or obligation or any other material liabilities or
     issue any debt  securities;  (iv) assume,  guarantee,  endorse or otherwise
     become liable or responsible (whether directly,  contingently or otherwise)
     for the obligations of any other Person in a material amount;  (v) make any
     loans,  advances or capital  contributions to, or investments in, any other
     Person; (vi) fail to maintain insurance  consistent with past practices for
     its business; (vii) change any accounting method or practice of the Company
     except  insofar as may be required by a change in GAAP or  Applicable  Law;
     (viii)  make  or  enter  into  any  binding   commitment  for  any  capital
     expenditures or related group of capital expenditures in excess of $10,000;
     (ix)  prior to the  submission  by the  Company  of its grape and bulk wine
     purchase  plans for calendar year 2001,  and the approval of these plans by
     Parent,  the  Company  will not enter into any grape or bulk wine  purchase
     agreement involving more than $25,000;  (x) modify,  amend or terminate any
     Material  Contract,  except in the ordinary  course of business  consistent
     with past  practices;  (xi)  initiate any new product  promotions,  product
     discounts or other material price changes,
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     or (xii) enter into any contract, agreement, commitment or arrangement with
     respect to any of the foregoing.



          (d) The  Company  shall use its  reasonable  best  efforts to preserve
     intact its business  organization,  to keep  available  the services of its
     present  officers and key Employees,  and to preserve the goodwill of those
     having business relationships with it; provided, however, that no breach of
     this  covenant  shall be deemed to have  occurred as a result of any matter
     arising  out of the  transactions  contemplated  by this  Agreement  or the
     public announcement thereof.

          (e) The  Company  shall use  reasonable  best  efforts to prevent  any
     representation  or warranty of the Company  herein from becoming  untrue or
     incorrect in any material respect.

     Section  5.2  COMPENSATION  PLANS.  During the period from the date of this
Agreement and  continuing  until the Effective  Time, the Company agrees that it
will not do any of the  following  without the prior  written  consent of Parent
(which  consent  shall  not be  unreasonable  withheld  or  delayed),  except as
required by Applicable Law or pursuant to existing contractual arrangements.

          (a)  enter  into,  adopt  or  amend  any  Company  Employee  Plans  to
     materially increase the benefits thereunder;

          (b)  grant  or  become   obligated   to  grant  any  increase  in  the
     compensation  or  fringe  benefits  of  directors,  officers  or  Employees
     (including any such increase pursuant to any Company Employee Plans) or any
     increase in the  compensation  payable or to become payable to any officer,
     except for  increases in  compensation  in the ordinary  course of business
     consistent  with past practice,  or enter into any contract,  commitment or
     arrangement  to do any of the  foregoing,  except for normal  increases and
     non-stock  benefit  changes in the ordinary  course of business  consistent
     with past practice;

          (c) make any material change in any Company Employee Plans arrangement
     or enter into any employment or similar  agreement or arrangement  with any
     employee; or

          (d)  enter  into or  renew  any  contract,  agreement,  commitment  or
     arrangement providing for the payment to any director,  officer or employee
     of  compensation  or  benefits  contingent,  or  the  terms  of  which  are
     materially altered in favor of such individual,  upon the occurrence of any
     of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

          (e) Notwithstanding  anything to the contrary in this Section 5.2, the
     Company (i) shall be permitted to pay cash bonuses to its  Employees in the
     ordinary course of business in amounts consistent with past practice and to
     make any changes to comply with Applicable Law; provided, however, that the
     Company  shall  advise  Parent of any such  payments or  changes;  and (ii)
     shall, or cause the plan administrator under the Company ESPP to, (y) amend
     the terms of the Company ESPP  effective as soon as  practicable  after the
     execution and delivery of this Agreement such that as of the date
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     hereof there shall be no new  Participants (as defined in the Company ESPP)
     to the plan and no existing Participant shall be allowed to increase his or
     her  rate  of  participation  within  the  Company  ESPP  and  (z)  suspend
     immediately  the Company ESPP  following the close of the current  Purchase
     Period (as defined in the Company ESPP).

     Section  5.3  VOTING  AGREEMENTS.  Concurrently  herewith  certain  of  the
Company's   shareholders   entered  into  a  Voting  Agreement  with  Parent  in
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the "Voting Agreements").

     Section 5.4 NO SOLICITATION.

          (a) The  Company  shall not,  and shall not  authorize  the  Company's
     officers, directors, Employees, Affiliates, agents or other representatives
     (including any investment banker, financial advisor, attorney or accountant
     retained by it) to, (i) initiate, solicit or knowingly encourage (including
     by way of furnishing  non-public  information)  or take any other action to
     facilitate,  any  inquiries or the making of any  proposal  relating to, or
     that may reasonably be expected to lead to, an Alternative Transaction,  or
     enter into discussions  (except as to the existence of this Section 5.4) or
     negotiate  with any Person for the purpose of  facilitating  an Alternative
     Transaction,  (ii) agree to, or recommend, any Alternative Transaction,  or
     (iii) enter into any agreement,  arrangement or understanding  requiring it
     to abandon, terminate or fail to consummate the Merger.

          (b) The Company shall promptly  notify Parent of all material terms of
     any proposals for an Alternative  Transaction received by the Company or by
     any  officer,  director,  Employee,  agent,  investment  banker,  financial
     advisor,  attorney,  accountant  or  other  representative  of the  Company
     relating to any of such matters,  and if such  proposal is in writing,  the



     Company shall promptly deliver or cause to be delivered to Parent a copy of
     such  proposal.  The Company shall keep Parent  reasonably  apprised of the
     status  and  material  terms of any  proposal  relating  to an  Alternative
     Transaction on a current basis.

          (c) The Company  shall use its  reasonable  best  efforts to cause its
     directors,  officers,  Employees, agents and representatives immediately to
     cease  all  existing  activities,  discussions  and  negotiations  with any
     parties  conducted  heretofore with respect to any Alternative  Transaction
     and use its reasonable best efforts to ensure that no directors,  officers,
     Employees,  agents or representatives,  directly or indirectly,  undertakes
     any such  activities  during  the term of this  Agreement.  If the board of
     directors of the Company  learns of any such action,  the Company shall use
     reasonable  best  efforts  to cause the party or parties  undertaking  such
     action to cease such action immediately.  The Company shall promptly notify
     the officers,  directors  and  Employees of the Company and any  investment
     banker or other  advisor or  representative  retained by the Company of the
     restrictions described in this Section 5.4.

          (d) Nothing  contained in this  Agreement  shall prohibit the board of
     directors of the Company, the Company, and each of its officers, directors,
     Employees,  Affiliates,  agents  or other  representatives  (including  any
     investment banker,  financial advisor,  attorney or accountant  retained by
     the Company) from (i) referring a Third Party
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     to this  Section 5.4,  (ii)  furnishing  information  to,  entering  into a
     confidentiality   agreement   with,   or  entering  into   discussions   or
     negotiations  with, any Person in connection with an unsolicited  bona fide
     proposal by such Person relating to an Alternative Transaction if, and only
     to the  extent  that  (A) the  board of  directors  of the  Company,  after
     consultation with the Company's financial advisors,  believes in good faith
     that such  proposal  could  lead to a  Superior  Proposal  and (B) prior to
     furnishing   such   information   to,  or  entering  into   discussions  or
     negotiations  with,  such Person the  Company  provides  written  notice to
     Parent to the effect that it is furnishing information to, or entering into
     discussions or negotiations  with,  such Person,  (iii) complying with Rule
     14e-2  promulgated  under the Exchange Act or making such disclosure to the
     Company's shareholders as, in the good faith determination of the Company's
     board of directors,  is required by Applicable  Law,  (iv)  recommending  a
     Superior Proposal,  provided,  that the terms of Section 5.4(e) are met, or
     (v) entering into an agreement or understanding  with respect to a Superior
     Proposal, provided, that the terms of Section 5.4(f) are met.

          (e) The Company  agrees that  neither  the board of  directors  of the
     Company nor any committee  thereof will (i) withdraw or modify,  or propose
     publicly  to  withdraw  or  modify,  in a manner  adverse  to  Parent,  the
     recommendation of the board of directors of the Company with respect to the
     Merger or (ii)  approve or  recommend,  or propose  publicly  to approve or
     recommend,  any Alternative  Transaction.  Notwithstanding the foregoing or
     any other  provision of this  Agreement to the  contrary,  if, prior to the
     Effective  Time, (x) in response to a bona fide  unsolicited  proposal with
     respect to an  Alternative  Transaction  (including  following  any actions
     permitted  by  paragraph  (d)),  the  board  of  directors  of the  Company
     determines,  in its good faith  judgment  taking into account the advice of
     its financial advisor and outside counsel, that such proposal is a Superior
     Proposal,  or  (y)  under  circumstances  not  related  to  an  Alternative
     Transaction,  the Company's  board of directors,  after  consultation  with
     outside counsel,  determines in good faith that failure to take such action
     would  breach its  fiduciary  duties to the  Company's  shareholders  under
     Applicable  Law, the board of directors of the Company may (subject to this
     and the following  sentences)  take any or all of the actions  described in
     the preceding sentence; provided, that the Company shall immediately inform
     Parent orally and in writing of the material  terms and  conditions of such
     Alternative  Transaction  and the identity of the Person making it, or such
     other circumstances,  and if any Alternative Transaction is in writing, the
     Company shall immediately  deliver a copy thereof to Parent, if the Company
     has not already done so pursuant to Section 5.4(b). Nothing in this Section
     5.4(e)  shall  in any way  limit  or  otherwise  affect  Parent's  right to
     terminate  this  Agreement  pursuant  to Section  8.1.  Any  withdrawal  or
     modification of the recommendation of the board of directors of the Company
     shall not change the  approval of the board of directors of the Company for
     purposes  of causing  any state  takeover  statute or other state law to be
     inapplicable to the transactions contemplated hereby, including the Merger.

          (f) Notwithstanding  any other provision of this Agreement,  if, prior
     to the Effective Time, in response to a bona fide unsolicited proposal with
     respect to an  Alternative  Transaction  (including  following  any actions
     permitted  by  paragraph  (d)),  if the board of  directors  of the Company
     determines, in its good faith judgment taking into
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     account the advice of its financial advisor and outside counsel,  that such
     proposal is a Superior Proposal,  the board of directors of the Company may
     (subject to this and the  following  sentence)  terminate  this  Agreement;
     provided,  that the Company  gives Parent at least two Business  Days prior
     written notice of its intention to terminate this  Agreement,  during which
     two  Business  Day or longer  period,  the Company if  requested  by Parent
     engages in good faith negotiations with Parent with respect to such changes
     as Parent  may  propose  to the terms of this  Agreement.  Nothing  in this
     Section 5.4(f) shall in any way limit or otherwise affect Parent's right to
     terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.1.

     Section  5.5  CONDUCT OF  BUSINESS  BY PARENT AND  MERGER SUB  PENDING  THE
MERGER.  During the period from the date of this Agreement and continuing  until
the earlier of the termination of this Agreement or the Effective  Time,  Parent
and Merger Sub shall not engage in any action or enter into any  transaction  or
permit  any  action to be taken or  transaction  to be  entered  into that could
reasonably  be expected to delay the  consummation  of, or  otherwise  adversely
affect, any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

                                   ARTICLE VI
                              ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS

     Section 6.1  SHAREHOLDER  APPROVALS.  The  Company  shall  promptly  call a
meeting of its  shareholders  (the  "Shareholder  Meeting")  for the  purpose of
obtaining  the  approval  and  adoption of this  Agreement  and the Merger.  The
Shareholder Meeting shall be held as soon as practicable following the date upon
which the Proxy Statement becomes  effective,  and the Company will, through its
board of  directors  (except to the extent  that the board of  directors  of the
Company  would  otherwise  be allowed to withdraw  or modify its  recommendation
pursuant to Section  5.4(e))  recommend  to its  shareholders  the  approval and
adoption of this Agreement and the Merger.

     Section 6.2 PROXY STATEMENT.

          (a) The  Company  shall  prepare  and file with the SEC a  preliminary
     Proxy  Statement  relating  to the Merger and this  Agreement,  and use its
     reasonable best efforts (x) to obtain and furnish the information  required
     to be included by Applicable Law in the  preliminary  Proxy  Statement and,
     after consultation with Parent, to respond promptly to any comments made by
     the SEC with  respect  to the Proxy  Statement,  and (y) to cause the Proxy
     Statement  and any  amendment or  supplement  thereto,  to be mailed to its
     shareholders, provided, that the Company (1) will promptly notify Parent of
     its receipt of any comments from the SEC or its staff and of any request by
     the SEC or its staff for amendments or  supplements of the Proxy  Statement
     or for additional information; (2) will promptly provide Parent with copies
     of all correspondence between the Company or any of its representatives, on
     the one hand, and the SEC or its staff,  on the other hand, with respect to
     the Proxy  Statement or the Merger and (3) will not amend or supplement the
     Proxy Statement  without first consulting with Parent and its counsel,  and
     (z) to obtain the necessary  approvals of the Merger and this  Agreement by
     its shareholders to the extent required by the California Code.
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          (b) The Company shall prepare and revise the Proxy  Statement so that,
     at  the  date  mailed  to  Company  shareholders  and at  the  time  of the
     Shareholder  Meeting,  the Proxy  Statement will (x) not contain any untrue
     statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to
     be stated therein or necessary in order that the  statements  made therein,
     in light of the circumstances under which they are made, are not misleading
     (except  that the Company  shall not be  responsible  under this clause (b)
     with respect to statements  made therein based on  information  supplied by
     Parent or Merger Sub expressly for inclusion in the Proxy  Statement),  and
     (y) comply in all material respects with the provisions of the Exchange Act
     and the rules and regulations thereunder.

          (c) The Company  shall include in the Proxy  Statement  (except to the
     extent that the or board of  directors  of the Company  would  otherwise be
     allowed  to  withdraw  or modify  its  recommendation  pursuant  to Section
     5.4(e)) the  recommendation  of such Board that shareholders of the Company
     vote in  favor of the  approval  of the  Merger  and the  adoption  of this
     Agreement.

          (d) Parent shall  furnish to the Company such  information  concerning
     itself and Merger Sub,  for  inclusion  in the Proxy  Statement,  as may be
     requested  by  the  Company  and  required  to be  included  in  the  Proxy
     Statement.  Such  information  provided by Parent and Merger Sub in writing
     expressly  for inclusion in the Proxy  Statement  will not, at the date the
     Proxy  Statement is filed with the SEC, and mailed to Company  shareholders



     and (including any  corrections or  modifications  made by Parent or Merger
     Sub to such  information) at the time of the Shareholder  Meeting,  contain
     any untrue  statement of a material  fact or omit to state a material  fact
     required to be stated  therein or  necessary  in order that the  statements
     made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, are
     not misleading.

          (e)  Parent  shall  vote or cause to be voted all  shares  of  Company
     Common Stock beneficially owned by Parent or Merger Sub, or which Parent or
     Merger  Sub  have  the  power to vote or  direct  the vote of in favor  of,
     adoption of the Merger and the Merger.

     Section 6.3 ACCESS TO INFORMATION; CONFIDENTIALITY.

          (a) Upon reasonable  notice and subject to  restrictions  contained in
     confidentiality  agreements  to which such party is  subject,  the  Company
     shall afford to the  officers,  Employees,  accountants,  counsel and other
     representatives of Parent reasonable access, during the period prior to the
     Effective Time, to all its properties,  books,  contracts,  commitments and
     records.  The Company shall furnish  promptly to the Parent all information
     concerning its business,  properties and personnel as Parent may reasonably
     request,  and the Company  shall make  available to Parent the  appropriate
     individuals (including attorneys,  accountants and other professionals) for
     discussion of the Company's  business,  properties  and personnel as Parent
     may reasonably request. Prior to the Closing, at the request of Parent, the
     Company will deliver to Parent an  unaudited  balance  sheet as of the most
     recent month ending at least 15 Business  Days prior to the then  scheduled
     Closing Date and the related financial statements for such
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     month.  Subject  to Section  6.3(b),  Parent  shall  keep such  information
     confidential  in accordance with the terms of the letter  agreement,  dated
     February 16, 2001 (the "Confidentiality  Agreement") between Parent and the
     Company.  Neither  Parent  nor the  Company  shall  disclose  to any  sales
     representatives,  distributors,  brokers, customers, suppliers or Employees
     of the Company any information concerning the transactions  contemplated by
     this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.

          (b) The  Company  agrees that  Parent may use,  and the Company  shall
     deliver,  such  consents  of the Company  and shall  request the  Company's
     outside  public  accountants  to deliver such consents as may be reasonably
     requested  by Parent  to the use of the  financial  and  other  information
     provided  pursuant to Section 6.3(a);  provided that the Company shall have
     the right,  not to be unreasonably  withheld,  to consent in advance to the
     public disclosure by Parent of the Company's confidential information.

          (c) The Company and Parent shall file all reports required to be filed
     by each of them with the SEC  between  the date of this  Agreement  and the
     Effective  Time and shall deliver to the other party copies of such reports
     promptly after the same are filed. Such reports will comply in all material
     respects with the  requirements  of the Exchange Act or the  Securities Act
     and the rules and regulations  promulgated thereunder,  as applicable,  and
     none of such reports, as of their respective dates, will contain any untrue
     statement of material  fact or omit to state a material fact required to be
     stated therein,  or necessary to make the statements  therein, in the light
     of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

     Section 6.4 CONSENTS; APPROVALS.

          (a) The Company and Parent shall  coordinate  and  cooperate  with one
     another and shall each use their reasonable best efforts to promptly obtain
     (and shall each  refrain  from taking any willful  action that would impede
     obtaining)  all  consents,  waivers,  approvals,  authorizations  or orders
     (including,  without limitation, all rulings, decisions or approvals by any
     Governmental  Authority),  and the Company and Parent  shall each use their
     reasonable  best efforts to promptly make all filings  (including,  without
     limitation, the pre-merger notification filings required under the HSR Act,
     and  all  other  filings  with  Governmental   Authorities),   required  in
     connection with the authorization, execution and delivery of this Agreement
     by the Company and Parent and the  consummation by them of the transactions
     contemplated hereby.

          (b) Each party  hereby  agrees to use its  reasonable  best efforts to
     file the premerger notification report, and all other documents to be filed
     in  connection  therewith,  required  by the  HSR  Act  and  the  Premerger
     Notification  Rules  promulgated  thereunder with the United States Federal
     Trade  Commission  and the United  States  Department of Justice as soon as
     practicable  following  the date hereof,  but in any event within five days
     following the date hereof. Each party shall respond promptly to any request
     for  additional  information  that may be issued by  either  Federal  Trade
     Commission or Department of Justice and shall use  reasonable  best efforts
     to assure  that the waiting  period  required by the HSR Act has expired or



     been terminated prior to the date that is 30 days after such filing.
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          (c) The Company and Parent shall furnish all  information  required to
     be included in any Proxy Statement,  or for any application or other filing
     to be made  pursuant  to the  rules  and  regulations  of any  Governmental
     Authority  in  connection  with  the  transactions   contemplated  by  this
     Agreement.  Except where prohibited by applicable statutes and regulations,
     and subject to the Confidentiality  Agreement,  each party shall coordinate
     with one another in preparing and exchanging  such  information,  and shall
     promptly  provide the other (or its  counsel)  with copies of all  filings,
     presentations  or  submissions  made by such  party  with any  Governmental
     Authority  in   connection   with  this   Agreement  or  the   transactions
     contemplated  hereby.  Each of Parent and Company  shall  promptly make all
     necessary filings with Governmental  Authorities and shall promptly provide
     the other party with copies of filings made by such party  between the date
     hereof and the Effective Time.

     Section 6.5 NOTIFICATION OF CERTAIN MATTERS.  The Company shall give prompt
notice to Parent, and Parent shall give prompt notice to the Company, of (i) the
occurrence or  non-occurrence  of any event the occurrence or  non-occurrence of
which would be likely to cause any  representation or warranty contained in this
Agreement  to be  materially  untrue or  inaccurate  and (ii) any failure of the
Company,  Parent or Merger Sub, as the case may be, to materially comply with or
satisfy any covenant, condition or agreement to be complied with or satisfied by
it hereunder;  provided,  however,  that the delivery of any notice  pursuant to
this  Section 6.5 shall not limit or  otherwise  affect the  remedies  available
hereunder to the party  receiving such notice and further  provided that failure
to give such  notice  shall not be treated  as a breach of a covenant  hereunder
unless the failure to give such  notice  results in  material  prejudice  to the
other party.

     Section  6.6  FURTHER  ASSURANCES.  Upon  the  terms  and  subject  to  the
conditions hereof,  each of the parties hereto shall use reasonable best efforts
to take, or cause to be taken,  all actions and to do, or cause to be done,  and
to assist and cooperate with the other parties  hereto in doing,  as promptly as
practicable,  all other things necessary,  proper or advisable to consummate and
make effective as promptly as practicable the transactions  contemplated by this
Agreement,  to obtain in a timely  manner all  necessary  waivers,  consents and
approvals  and  to  effect  all  necessary  registrations  and  filings,  and to
otherwise  satisfy or cause to be  satisfied  all  conditions  precedent  to its
obligations under this Agreement.

     Section 6.7 PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS. Parent and the Company shall consult with
each other before  issuing any press  release with respect to the Merger or this
Agreement  and shall not issue any such press  release  or make any such  public
statement  without  the prior  consent of the other  party,  which  shall not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed;  provided,  however, that a party may, without
the prior  consent of the other  party,  issue  such press  release or make such
public  statement  as may upon the advice of counsel be  required  by law or the
NASD or the NYSE if it has used  reasonable  best  efforts to  consult  with the
other party.

     Section 6.8 CONVEYANCE TAXES. Parent and the Company shall cooperate in the
preparation, execution and filing of all returns, questionnaires,  applications,
or other documents  regarding any real property  transfer or gains,  sales, use,
transfer, value added,
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stock transfer and stamp taxes, any transfer, recording,  registration and other
fees,  and any  similar  Taxes  which  become  payable  in  connection  with the
transactions  contemplated  hereby that are required or permitted to be filed on
or before the Effective Time.

     Section 6.9 DIRECTOR AND OFFICER LIABILITY.

          (a) For a period of six years after the Effective  Time,  Parent will,
     and will cause the Surviving  Corporation  to,  indemnify and hold harmless
     (and make  advances as incurred  to) the  present and former  officers  and
     directors  of the Company in respect of acts or  omissions  occurring at or
     prior to the  Effective  Time to the extent  provided  under the  Company's
     Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws in effect on the date hereof.

          (b) Parent will and will cause the  Surviving  Corporation  to perform
     any  indemnification   agreements  between  the  Company  and  any  of  its
     directors,  officers and Employees in force as of immediately  prior to the
     Effective Time.

          (c) For a period of six years after the Effective  Time,  Parent shall



     cause to be maintained  in effect the policies of directors'  and officers'
     liability  insurance  maintained  by the  Company  for the benefit of those
     Persons  who are  covered  by  such  policies  at the  date  hereof  or the
     Effective Time (or Parent and/or the Surviving  Corporation  may substitute
     therefor  policies of at least the same  coverage  with  respect to matters
     occurring prior to the Effective  Time);  provided,  that the Parent and/or
     the Surviving Corporation shall not be required to pay an annual premium in
     excess of two hundred percent (200%) of the last annual premium paid by the
     Company  prior to the date hereof which is set forth in Section 3.23 of the
     Company's  Disclosure Letter and if the Surviving  Corporation is unable to
     obtain the  insurance  required by this  Section  6.9(c) it shall obtain as
     much  comparable  insurance as possible for an annual premium equal to such
     maximum amount.

          (d) The  provisions  of this  Section 6.9 are intended for the benefit
     of, and may be enforced by, each Person entitled to  indemnification  under
     this Section 6.9.

     Section 6.10 ACTION BY PARENT AND COMPANY'S BOARDS.  Prior to the Effective
Time,  the boards of  directors  of Parent and the Company  shall each comply as
applicable with the provisions of the SEC's  no-action  letter dated January 12,
1999 addressed to Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher and Flom LLP relating to Section
16(b) of the Exchange Act.

     Section 6.11 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS.

          (a) Parent  agrees that all  Employees  of the Company  other than the
     Company's  current  directors  who continue  employment  with  Parent,  the
     Surviving  Corporation or any  subsidiary  thereof after the Effective Time
     (the "Continuing Employees") shall be provided such employment on terms and
     conditions  that, in the aggregate,  substantially as favorable as provided
     by the Company as of the Effective
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     Time with respect to wages and salaries, provided, that the Company has not
     otherwise  breached  Section 5.2 hereof with  respect to increases in wages
     and salaries.

          (b) As of the Effective  Time through the period  ending  February 28,
     2002, Parent shall, or shall cause the Surviving  Corporation to, establish
     and maintain compensation and benefit plans and arrangements for Continuing
     Employees  that,  in  the  aggregate,  are no  less  favorable  than  those
     currently  provided by the Company to the  Continuing  Employees  as of the
     Effective  Time   (excluding   any  stock  options  or  other   stock-based
     compensation),  except as required by Applicable  Law. From and after March
     1, 2002,  and until  February 28, 2004,  Parent  shall,  or shall cause the
     Surviving Corporation to, treat Continuing Employees no less favorably than
     employees of Parent, in the aggregate,  who are in comparable positions and
     at  comparable  locations  and shall  give each  Continuing  Employee  past
     service credit under its  compensation  and benefit plans and  arrangements
     and for all employee  benefits  purposes for service with the Company prior
     to the  Effective  Time as if such service had been with Parent;  provided,
     that such  credit for past  service  with the  Company  shall be solely for
     purposes of vesting and eligibility,  but not benefit accrual. Parent shall
     honor,  or cause the Surviving  Corporation  to honor,  in accordance  with
     their  terms  and bear  any  cost  associated  with  all  employee  benefit
     obligations  to current and former  Employees of the Company  accrued as of
     the Effective Time. Through February 28, 2002, Parent agrees to provide, or
     cause the Surviving  Corporation  to provide,  to Continuing  Employees the
     currently  provided coverage under the Company's  existing medical,  dental
     and health plans or under comparable  plans or arrangements.  Parent agrees
     that the  Surviving  Corporation  shall be  responsible  for  providing all
     legally-mandated  continuation  coverage for Continuing Employees and their
     covered  dependents  who experience a loss of coverage due to a "qualifying
     event"  (within the meaning of Section  603 of ERISA)  which  occurs at any
     time on or after  the  Effective  Time.  Nothing  in this  Section  6.11 is
     intended to create any  employment  obligation  other than as  employees at
     will who may be terminated with or without cause.

     Section 6.12 PAYMENT OF ACCRUED  BONUSES.  As of the  Effective  Time,  the
annual bonus for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2001,  for each Employee  shall
accrue in full and be payable by the Company to the extent not  previously  paid
by the Company. Parent shall cause the Surviving Corporation to pay such bonuses
as soon as practicable after the Effective Time.

                                   ARTICLE VII
                            CONDITIONS TO THE MERGER

     Section 7.1  CONDITIONS TO  OBLIGATIONS OF EACH PARTY TO EFFECT THE MERGER.
The  respective  obligations of each party to effect the Merger shall be subject
to  the  satisfaction  at or  prior  to the  Effective  Time  of  the  following



conditions:

          (a) NO INJUNCTIONS OR RESTRAINTS; ILLEGALITY. No temporary restraining
     order,  preliminary  or permanent  injunction  or other order issued by any
     court of competent  jurisdiction  or other legal  restraint or  prohibition
     preventing  the  consummation  of the Merger shall be in effect;  and there
     shall not be any action taken, or any statute,
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     rule, regulation or order enacted,  entered,  enforced or deemed applicable
     to the Merger, which makes the consummation of the Merger illegal.

          (b) HSR ACT. The waiting period (and any extension thereof) applicable
     to the  consummation  of the Merger under the HSR Act shall have expired or
     been  terminated  and any other  applicable  waiting period under any other
     premerger  notification  statute of a foreign  jurisdiction,  to the extent
     material, has either expired or been terminated.

          (c)  SHAREHOLDER  APPROVAL.  This  Agreement and the Merger shall have
     been approved and adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

     Section 7.2 ADDITIONAL  CONDITIONS TO OBLIGATIONS OF PARENT AND MERGER SUB.
The  obligations  of Parent and Merger Sub to effect the Merger are also subject
to the following conditions:

          (a) REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. The representations and warranties
     of the Company contained in this Agreement shall be true and correct on and
     as of the  Effective  Time  (except  (i) for changes  contemplated  by this
     Agreement,  (ii) those representations and warranties which address matters
     only as of a  particular  date (which  shall  remain true and correct as of
     such date (subject to the qualifications in clause (iii) below)); and (iii)
     where the failure of such  representations and warranties to be so true and
     correct  (without  giving effect to any limitation as to  "materiality"  or
     "material  adverse effect" or "Knowledge of the Company" set forth therein)
     would not have a Material Adverse Effect) with the same force and effect as
     if made on and as of the  Effective  Time,  and Parent and Merger Sub shall
     have  received a  certificate  to such effect  signed by the  President and
     Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

          (b)  AGREEMENTS  AND  COVENANTS.  The Company shall have  performed or
     complied  in all  material  respects  with  all  agreements  and  covenants
     required by this  Agreement to be  performed  or complied  with by it on or
     prior to the Effective  Time, and Parent and Merger Sub shall have received
     a certificate  to such effect  signed by the President and Chief  Financial
     Officer of the Company.

          (c) MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT.  Since the date of this Agreement,  there
     shall not have occurred a Material Adverse Effect.

     Section  7.3  ADDITIONAL  CONDITIONS  TO  OBLIGATION  OF THE  COMPANY.  The
obligation  of the Company to effect the Merger is also subject to the following
conditions:

          (a) REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. The representations and warranties
     of Parent and  Merger Sub  contained  in this  Agreement  shall be true and
     correct  on  and  as  of  the  Effective   Time  (except  (i)  for  changes
     contemplated by this Agreement,  (ii) those  representations and warranties
     which address matters only as of a particular  date), and the Company shall
     have  received a  certificate  to such effect  signed by the  President and
     Chief Financial Officer of Parent.
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          (b)  AGREEMENTS  AND  COVENANTS.  Parent  and  Merger  Sub shall  have
     performed  or complied in all material  respects  with all  agreements  and
     covenants  required by this  Agreement to be performed or complied  with by
     them on or prior to the Effective Time, and the Company shall have received
     a certificate  to such effect  signed by the President and Chief  Financial
     Officer of Parent.

                                  ARTICLE VIII
                                   TERMINATION

     Section 8.1 TERMINATION. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior
to the Effective Time,  notwithstanding  approval thereof by the shareholders of
the Company:

          (a) by  mutual  written  consent  duly  authorized  by the  boards  of
     directors of Parent and the Company; or



          (b) by either Parent or the Company, if the Merger shall not have been
     consummated  by September 28, 2001 (the "Final  Date"),  (provided that the
     right to terminate  this  Agreement  under this Section 8.1(b) shall not be
     available to any party whose failure to fulfill any  obligation  under this
     Agreement  has been a principal  cause of or resulted in the failure of the
     Merger to occur on or before  such date and such  action or  failure to act
     constitutes a material breach of this Agreement); or

          (c)  by  either  Parent  or  the  Company,  if a  court  of  competent
     jurisdiction  or  governmental,  regulatory  or  administrative  agency  or
     commission shall have issued a non-appealable final order, decree or ruling
     or  taken  any  other  action,   in  each  case  having  become  final  and
     non-appealable,  having the effect of permanently restraining, enjoining or
     otherwise  prohibiting  the  Merger,  except if the party  relying  on such
     order,  decree  or  ruling  or  other  action  has not  complied  with  its
     obligations under Sections 6.4; or

          (d) by Parent or the Company if, at the Shareholder Meeting (including
     any  adjournment  or  postponement  thereof),  the  requisite  vote  of the
     shareholders of the Company for approval and adoption of this Agreement and
     the Merger shall not have been obtained; or

          (e) by Parent,  if (i) the board of  directors  of the  Company  shall
     withdraw,  modify or change its  recommendation  of this  Agreement  or the
     Merger in a manner  adverse to Parent or shall have  resolved  to do any of
     the  foregoing;  or (ii) the board of directors  of the Company  shall have
     recommended to the shareholders of the Company an Alternative  Transaction;
     or

          (f) by the Company, pursuant to Section 5.4(f); or

          (g)  by  Parent  or  the  Company,  upon  a  material  breach  of  any
     representation,  warranty, covenant or agreement on the part of the Company
     or  Parent,  respectively,  set  forth  in this  Agreement  such  that  the
     conditions  set forth in  Section  7.2(a) or 7.2(b),  or Section  7.3(a) or
     7.3(b), would not be satisfied, provided, that
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     if such breach is curable  through the exercise of reasonable best efforts,
     then the other party may not terminate  pursuant to this Section  8.1(g) in
     respect of such breach if such breach  shall have been cured within 30 days
     following notice by the other party of such breach,  provided the breaching
     party  continues to use reasonable  best efforts to cure such breach during
     the 30 day period  (it being  understood  that (i) the other  party may not
     terminate  this  Agreement  pursuant to this Section 8.1(g) after notice of
     such  breach if such  breach  shall have been  cured  within 30 days or the
     party  seeking  to  terminate  shall  then be in  material  breach  of this
     Agreement  and (ii) no cure period  shall be required for a breach which by
     its nature cannot be cured).

     Section 8.2 EFFECT OF TERMINATION.  In the event of the termination of this
Agreement  pursuant to Section 8.1, this Agreement shall  forthwith  become void
and there shall be no  liability  on the part of any party  hereto or any of its
affiliates, directors, officers or shareholders; provided, however, that nothing
in this Section 8.2 shall  relieve any party from  liability  for breach of this
Agreement  or for fees and  expenses as set forth in Section  8.3, and that this
Section 8.2 and Section 8.3 shall survive  indefinitely  any termination of this
Agreement.

     Section 8.3 FEES AND EXPENSES.

          (a) Except as set forth in this Section 8.3, (i) all fees and expenses
     incurred  in  connection   with  this   Agreement   and  the   transactions
     contemplated hereby shall be paid by the party incurring such expenses,  if
     the Merger is not consummated,  or (ii) if the Merger is consummated,  then
     the Surviving Corporation shall pay all such fees and expenses.

          (b) The  Company  shall pay  Parent a fee of  $8,000,000  in cash (the
     "Fee") upon the occurrence of both of the following events:

               (i) the  termination  of this  Agreement by Parent or the Company
          pursuant  to (A)  Section  8.1(d)  or  8.1(e)(i),  provided,  that  an
          Alternative  Transaction  shall have been publicly  announced prior to
          the time the Company seeks the approval and adoption of this Agreement
          and the  Merger  by its  shareholders  and such  proposed  Alternative
          Transaction  has not been  withdrawn  by the Third Party or  otherwise
          affirmatively  rejected by the Board of Directors of the Company;  (B)
          Section 8.1(e)(ii) or (C) Section 8.1(f); and

               (ii) the proposed  Alternative  Transaction is consummated within
          eighteen months of the date of such termination.



          (c) The Fee payable  pursuant to Section  8.3(b)  shall be paid within
     one  business day after the  consummation  of the  Alternative  Transaction
     which gives rise to the obligation to make such payment.
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                                   ARTICLE IX
                               GENERAL PROVISIONS

     Section 9.1  EFFECTIVENESS OF  REPRESENTATIONS,  WARRANTIES AND AGREEMENTS;
KNOWLEDGE, ETC.

          (a)  Except  as   otherwise   provided  in  this   Section   9.1,  the
     representations,  warranties  and  agreements  of each party  hereto  shall
     remain   operative  and  in  full  force  and  effect   regardless  of  any
     investigation  made by or on behalf of any other party  hereto,  any Person
     controlling  any such party or any of their officers or directors,  whether
     prior to or after the  execution of this  Agreement.  The  representations,
     warranties  and  agreements  in  this  Agreement  shall  terminate  at  the
     Effective  Time or upon  the  termination  of this  Agreement  pursuant  to
     Section 8.1, as the case may be,  except that the  agreements  set forth in
     Article II and Section 6.3 shall  survive the Effective  Time  indefinitely
     and the  agreements  and  liabilities  set forth or otherwise  described in
     Section  8.2 or Section 8.3 shall  survive  termination  indefinitely.  The
     Confidentiality  Agreement  shall survive  termination of this Agreement as
     provided therein.

          (b) Any disclosure  made with reference to one or more Sections of the
     Company's Disclosure Letter or the Parent Disclosure Letter shall be deemed
     disclosed  with  respect  to each  other  section  therein as to which such
     disclosure is relevant provided that such relevance is reasonably apparent;
     provided,  that the  Company,  with  respect  to the  Company's  Disclosure
     Letter,  and Parent,  with respect to the Parent Disclosure  Letter,  shall
     exercise  reasonable  best efforts to cross  reference the sections where a
     disclosure made in the applicable  Disclosure  Letter is applicable to more
     than one representation or warranty.

     Section 9.2  NOTICES.  All notices and other  communications  given or made
pursuant  hereto shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given
or made as of the date delivered if delivered personally, the third Business Day
after  deposit in the U.S.  mail,  if mailed by  registered  or  certified  mail
(postage  prepaid,  return  receipt  requested),  or the  next  Business  Day if
delivered by a commercial courier guaranteeing overnight delivery to the parties
at the  following  addresses  (or at such other  address for a party as shall be
specified by like changes of address  which shall be effective  upon receipt) or
as of the date delivered if sent by facsimile  transmission,  with  confirmation
received, to the facsimile number specified below:

          (a) If to Parent or Merger Sub:

                      Constellation Brands, Inc.
                      300 Willowbrook Office Park
                      Fairport, NY 14450
                      Attention: Richard Sands
                      Facsimile No.: (716) 218-2160
                      Telephone No.: (716) 218-2110
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              With copies to:

                      Farella, Braun & Martel LLP
                      Russ Building, 30th Floor
                      235 Montgomery Street
                      San Francisco, CA  94104
                      Attention:  Jeffrey P. Newman, Esq.
                                  Daniel E. Cohn, Esq.
                      Facsimile No.: (415) 954-4482
                      Telephone No.: (415) 954-4480

                      Constellation Brands, Inc.
                      300 Willowbrook Office Park
                      Fairport, NY 14450
                      Attention: Tom Mullin, Esq.
                      Facsimile No.: (716) 218-2165
                      Telephone No.: (716) 218-2112

                  (b) If to the Company:

                      Ravenswood Winery, Inc.



                      18701 Gehricke Road
                      Sonoma, CA 95476
                      Attention:  Joel Peterson
                      Facsimile No.:  (707) 938-9459
                      Telephone No.: (707) 938-1960

              With copies to:

                      Ravenswood Winery, Inc.
                      26200 Arnold Dr.
                      Sonoma, CA 95476
                      Attention:  Justin Faggioli
                      Facsimile No.:  (707) 938-9496
                      Telephone No.: (707) 938-1960

                      Morrison & Foerster LLP
                      425 Market Street
                      San Francisco, CA 94105
                      Attention:  Robert Townsend, Esq.
                      Facsimile No.:  (415) 268-7522
                      Telephone No.: (415) 268-7080

     Section 9.3 AMENDMENT.  This Agreement may be amended by the parties hereto
by action taken by or on behalf of their  respective  boards of directors at any
time prior to the Effective Time; provided, however, that, after approval of the
Merger by the shareholders of the Company, no amendment may be made which by law
requires further

                                       44

approval by such shareholders without such further approval.  This Agreement may
not be amended except by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto.

     Section  9.4 WAIVER.  At any time prior to the  Effective  Time,  any party
hereto may with  respect to any other  party  hereto (a) extend the time for the
performance of any of the obligations or other acts, (b) waive any  inaccuracies
in the  representations  and  warranties  contained  herein  or in any  document
delivered pursuant hereto and (c) waive compliance with any of the agreements or
conditions  contained herein. Any such extension or waiver shall be valid if set
forth in an  instrument  in  writing  signed by the party or parties to be bound
thereby.

     Section 9.5  HEADINGS.  The headings  contained in this  Agreement  are for
reference  purposes  only  and  shall  not  affect  in any  way the  meaning  or
interpretation of this Agreement.

     Section 9.6 SEVERABILITY.  If any term or other provision of this Agreement
is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced by any rule of law, or public
policy, all other conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless
remain in full force and effect so long as the  economic or legal  substance  of
the  transactions  contemplated  hereby is not affected in any manner adverse to
any party. Upon such  determination that any term or other provision is invalid,
illegal or incapable of being  enforced,  the parties hereto shall  negotiate in
good faith to modify this  Agreement so as to effect the original  intent of the
parties  as  closely  as  possible  in an  acceptable  manner  to the  end  that
transactions  contemplated hereby are fulfilled to the extent possible.  Section
9.7 Entire  Agreement.  This Agreement  (including the documents and instruments
referred to herein)  constitute  the entire  agreement  and  supersede all prior
agreements and undertakings  (other than the  Confidentiality  Agreement),  both
written and oral, among the parties, or any of them, with respect to the subject
matter  hereof and,  except as  otherwise  expressly  provided  herein,  are not
intended to confer upon any other Person any rights or remedies hereunder.

     Section 9.8 ASSIGNMENT, MERGER SUB. This Agreement shall not be assigned by
operation of law or otherwise  without the prior  written  consent of Parent and
the  Company,  except  that Parent and Merger Sub may assign all or any of their
rights  hereunder to any Affiliate of Parent  provided  that no such  assignment
shall relieve the assigning party of its obligations hereunder.

     Section 9.9 PARTIES IN INTEREST.  This Agreement  shall be binding upon and
inure solely to the benefit of each party hereto, and nothing in this Agreement,
express or implied,  is intended  to or shall  confer upon any other  Person any
right,  benefit  or remedy of any nature  whatsoever  under or by reason of this
Agreement, except as provided in Sections 2.4(f), 6.9 and 6.12 hereof.

     Section  9.10  GOVERNING  LAW.  This  Agreement  shall be governed  by, and
construed  in  accordance  with,  the internal  laws of the State of  California
applicable to
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contracts  executed and fully performed within the State of California,  without
regard to the conflicts of laws provisions thereof.

     Section 9.11  COUNTERPARTS.  This  Agreement may be executed in one or more
counterparts, and by the different parties hereto in separate counterparts, each
of which when executed  shall be deemed to be an original but all of which taken
together shall constitute one and the same agreement.

     Section  9.12  WAIVER OF JURY  TRIAL.  EACH OF  PARENT,  MERGER SUB AND THE
COMPANY HEREBY  IRREVOCABLY  WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, ALL
RIGHTS TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY  ACTION,  PROCEEDING,  OR  COUNTERCLAIM  (WHETHER
BASED UPON  CONTRACT,  TORT OR  OTHERWISE)  ARISING  OUT OF OR  RELATING TO THIS
AGREEMENT OR ANY OF THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

                            [SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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     IN WITNESS  WHEREOF,  Parent,  Merger Sub and the Company  have caused this
Agreement  and Plan Merger to be executed as of the date first  written above by
their respective officers thereunto duly authorized.

                                       CONSTELLATION BRANDS, INC.

                                       By:    /s/ Richard Sands
                                              --------------------------------
                                       Name:  Richard Sands
                                       Title: President

                                       VVV ACQUISITION CORP.

                                       By:    /s/ Agustin Francisco Huneeus
                                              --------------------------------
                                       Name:  Agustin Francisco Huneeus
                                       Title: President

                                       RAVENSWOOD WINERY, INC.

                                       By:    /s/ W. Reed Foster
                                              --------------------------------
                                       Name:  W. Reed Foster
                                       Title: Chairman and CEO
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                                  EXHIBIT 4.1

                                                                  EXECUTION COPY

                                 AMENDMENT NO. 2

     AMENDMENT NO. 2 dated as of May 16, 2001 between CONSTELLATION BRANDS, INC.
(formally  known as  Canandaigua  Brands,  Inc.),  a Delaware  corporation  (the
"Borrower");  each of the  Subsidiaries  of the  Borrower  identified  under the
caption "SUBSIDIARY  GUARANTORS" on the signature pages hereto (individually,  a
"Subsidiary  Guarantor"  and,  collectively  the  "Subsidiary  Guarantors"  and,
together with the Borrower,  the  "Obligors");  and THE CHASE MANHATTAN BANK, as
administrative  agent  for the  Lenders  referred  to below  (in such  capacity,
together with its successors in such capacity, the "Administrative Agent").

     The Borrower,  the Subsidiary  Guarantors,  certain financial  institutions
(the "Lenders") and the  Administrative  Agent are parties to a Credit Agreement
dated as of October 6, 1999 (as amended by Amendment  No. 1 thereto  dated as of
February 13, 2001 and as  otherwise  in effect on the date  hereof,  the "Credit
Agreement").  The  Obligors  and the  Administrative  Agent  (having  previously
obtained the  authorization  of the Required  Lenders)  wish to amend the Credit
Agreement in certain respects and, accordingly,  the parties hereto hereby agree
as follows:

     Section 1.  DEFINITIONS.  Except as otherwise defined in this Amendment No.
2, terms defined in the Credit  Agreement (as amended hereby) are used herein as
defined therein.

     Section  2.  AMENDMENTS.  Subject  to the  satisfaction  of the  conditions
specified in Section 4 hereof, but with effect on and after the date hereof, the
Credit Agreement is amended as follows:

          (a) The  definition  of "Net  Available  Proceeds" in Article I of the
     Credit Agreement is amended by adding the following  sentence at the end of
     such definition:

          "Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon the occurrence of any Acquisition
     by the Borrower or any Subsidiary,  the first cash received by the Borrower
     and  its  Subsidiaries  in  respect  of any  Equity  Issuance  or any  Debt
     Incurrence during the period commencing on the date of such Acquisition and
     ending on the date four  months  after the date of such  Acquisition  in an
     aggregate amount equal to the total purchase price of such Acquisition will
     not  constitute Net Available  Proceeds for the purpose of this  definition
     (it being  understood  that, in the event the Borrower and its Subsidiaries
     consummate more than one Acquisition  and/or undertake more than one Equity
     Issuance or more than one Debt  Incurrence  during any  rolling  four-month
     period,  the  foregoing  application  will be  made  with  respect  to such
     multiple  Acquisitions and/or Equity Issuances and/or Debt Incurrences on a
     chronological basis)."
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          (b) Clause (a) of Section 6.08 of the Credit  Agreement is amended and
     restated to read in its entirety as follows:

               "(a) in the case of the Tranche I Revolving Loans only,  repay on
          the  Effective  Date  Indebtedness  owing  under the  Existing  Credit
          Agreement and make acquisitions permitted by Section 7.05(b) (provided
          that, as provided in Section  7.05(b),  the Borrower will not use more
          than  $200,000,000  of the proceeds of each  Tranche I Revolving  Loan
          Borrowing to fund each  transaction  described  therein and/or pay any
          related fees or expenses referred to in said Section),"

          (c) Clause (iv) of Section 7.04 of the Credit Agreement is amended and
     restated to read in its entirety as follows:

               "(iv) other Property so long as the amount of such other Property
          sold in any single  fiscal year by the Borrower  and its  Subsidiaries
          shall  have  a  fair  market  value  not  in  excess  of  10%  of  the
          Consolidated Tangible Assets as at the first day of such fiscal year."

          (d)  Clause  (ii) of the  proviso  in  Section  7.05(b)  of the Credit
     Agreement is amended and restated to read in its entirety as follows:

               "(ii) the  Borrower  will not use more than  $200,000,000  of the
          proceeds of one or more  Tranche I Revolving  Loans to fund any single
          such transaction and/or pay any related fees or expenses."

     Section 3.  REPRESENTATIONS  AND  WARRANTIES.  The Borrower  represents and
warrants   to  the   Lenders   and  the   Administrative   Agent  that  (i)  the



representations  and warranties set forth in the Credit  Agreement,  and of each
Obligor in each of the other Loan Documents to which it is party (but as to such
other Loan Documents, in all material respects),  are true and correct on and as
of the date  hereof  as if made on and as of the date  hereof  (or,  if any such
representation  or  warranty  is  expressly  stated  to have  been  made as of a
specific date, such  representation  or warranty shall be true and correct as of
such specific date) and (ii) at the time of and immediately  after giving effect
to this Amendment No. 2, no Default has occurred and is continuing.

     Section 4.  CONDITIONS  PRECEDENT.  The  amendments  set forth in Section 2
hereof shall become  effective,  as of the date hereof,  upon the  execution and
delivery of this Amendment No. 2 by the Obligors and the Administrative Agent.

     Section 5. MISCELLANEOUS.  Except as herein provided,  the Credit Agreement
shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. This Amendment No. 2 may be
executed  in any  number of  counterparts,  all of which  taken  together  shall
constitute one and the same amendatory  instrument and any of the parties hereto
may execute this Amendment No. 2 by signing any such counterpart. This Amendment
No. 2 shall be governed by, and  construed in  accordance  with,  the law of the
State of New York.

                                Amendment No. 2
                                ---------------
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     IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  the parties hereto have caused this Amendment No. 2 to
be duly executed and delivered as of the day and year first above written.

                                    CONSTELLATION BRANDS, INC.

                                    By /s/ Thomas S. Summer
                                       -----------------------------------------
                                       Title: Executive Vice President and Chief
                                              Financial Officer

                              SUBSIDIARY GUARANTORS
                              ---------------------

ALLBERRY, INC.
BATAVIA WINE CELLARS, INC.
CANANDAIGUA EUROPE LIMITED
CANANDAIGUA WINE COMPANY, INC
CLOUD PEAK CORPORATION
FRANCISCAN VINEYARDS, INC.
MT. VEEDER CORPORATION
POLYPHENOLICS, INC.
ROBERTS TRADING CORP.

By /s/ Thomas S. Summer
   ----------------------------
   Title: Treasurer

BARTON INCORPORATED
BARTON BRANDS, LTD.
BARTON BEERS, LTD.
BARTON BRANDS OF CALIFORNIA, INC.
BARTON BRANDS OF GEORGIA, INC.
BARTON CANADA, LTD.
BARTON DISTILLERS IMPORT CORP.
BARTON FINANCIAL CORPORATION
MONARCH IMPORT COMPANY
STEVENS POINT BEVERAGE CO.

By /s/ Thomas S. Summer
   ----------------------------
   Title: Vice President

CANANDAIGUA LIMITED

By /s/ Thomas S. Summer
   ----------------------------
   Title: Finance Director
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THE CHASE MANHATTAN BANK,
   as Administrative Agent

By /s/ Gail Wein
   ----------------------------
   Title: Vice President

                                Amendment No. 2
                                ---------------



                                   EXHIBIT 11
                                   ----------

                    CONSTELLATION BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
                    COMPUTATION OF EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
                      (in thousands, except per share data)

                                            For the Three Months Ended May 31,
                                         ---------------------------------------
                                               2001                  2000
                                         -----------------     -----------------
                                          Basic    Diluted      Basic    Diluted
                                         -------   -------     -------   -------
Income applicable to common shares       $23,843   $23,843     $17,902   $17,902
                                         =======   =======     =======   =======
Shares:
Weighted average common shares
  outstanding                             41,254    41,254      36,460    36,460
Adjustments:
  Stock options                             -        1,272        -          736
                                         -------   -------     -------   -------
Adjusted weighted average common
  shares outstanding                      41,254    42,526      36,460    37,196
                                         =======   =======     =======   =======

Earnings per common share                $  0.58   $  0.56     $  0.49   $  0.48
                                         =======   =======     =======   =======


